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STATEMENT
BY THE COMPANY
MANAGEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

The annual report of our company,
which we present to you, covers
the achievement of our objectives
and the resulting economic

results for the period from August
2023 to the end of July 2024.

The main challenges affecting

our operations were the energy
crisis related to the military
conflictin Ukraine, the situation

in the Middle East, as well asissues
related to decarbonisation in the EU.

Despite the challenging situation
and uncertainty, we managed to
achieve good economic results
and maintain the stable position
of natural gas in Slovakia's energy
mix, despite significant subsidies
forrenewable energy. The position
of natural gas as a reliable, secure
and affordable low-carbon energy
source has been supported by

the continued diversification

ANNUAL REPORT

of gas supply and transport routes
to our country, state regulation

of gas prices for households, as
well as the smooth continuation
of gas supplies from the Russian
Federation through Ukraine. We
have filled our storage facilities,
which has enabled us to meet

the standard of security of supply
for Slovak households.

The implementation

of the maintenance plan has
strengthened our network, which
has had a positive impact not only on
maintaining a high level of reliability,
but also from an environmental
perspective on reducing the duration
of leaks and thus reducing methane
emissions. The safety and reliability
of our facilities, in addition to their
professional maintenance, are
ensured thanks to investments

in network recovery, which have
increased by more than 23 percent
year-on-year.

The flexibility and reliability of our
network not only guarantees

the warmth of homes in Slovak
households and the functioning
of industries for which gasis an
indispensable resource, but also
in the electricity sector, where
natural gas has an indispensable
role in balancing the electricity
grid and storing energy in case

of immediate need. These properties

of natural gas, as well as the good
state of the gas infrastructure

in Slovakia, suggest that natural gas
will be indispensable for Slovakia
for many decades to come.

We are continuously raising the level

of customer service to our customers

and we have intensified our
activities to introduce natural gas as
a traditionally reliable energy source
that is affordable with increasing
potential for sustainability. In this
context, last year we launched two
projects, first one being My New

Boiler aiming to help households
address the energy crisis while
contributing to decarbonisation.

By replacing an older atmospheric
boiler with a new condensing

boiler with a discount from SPP-D
and its partners of up to €600,

the customer immediately saves up
to 23% of gas costs and achieves
areductionin emissions in the same
proportion. We are pleased that our
solutions for the Slovak population
are also considered suitable by

the Association of Towns and
Communities of Slovakia, which has
become a communication partner
of our project. We are convinced
that natural gas is a suitable primary
heat source for heating and hot
water production also in new A0
energy class buildings. This is
mainly due to the unprecedented
cost-effectiveness of the gas
condensing boiler, its high efficiency,
low operating costs, simple
installation, real user comfort and
availability, not to mention the almost

negligible impact on the environment.

The solar panel as an additional
renewable source of heat energy

to the gas boiler furtherincreases
the efficiency of the entire heating
system with an emphasis on cost
savings. In addition to this, we have
prepared a second project consisting
in providing the project of a family
house free of charge to interested
parties who want to use natural gas
as the main heating source in their AO
standard property.

Contribution of SPP - distribucia to
green solutions for Slovakia also
consists in supporting the production
of biomethane. This renewable
gasisin growing demand and

new investors are interested in its
production. Currently, five new
entities have concluded contracts to
connect biomethane stations to our
distribution network. At the same
time, eight stations have signed up to
the Recovery Plan call for upgrading
biogas stations to biomethane.

The current year was also the first
year of operation of the Renewable
Gas Registry. We believe that we
have thus created the necessary
preconditions for the development
of biomethane market and

The flexibility and

reliability of our network
not only guarantees

the warmth of homes

in Slovak households and
the functioning of industries
for which gasis an
indispensable resource.

made animportant step towards
“green future” of the gas industry
in Slovakia. We are convinced
that the future of gas industry lies -
not only in the use of biomethane ¥
butalsoin the increased use

of green hydrogen. Based on
successful testing of its distribution
in the mixture with natural gas, this
year we were able to certify our
network to distribute a natural gas
mixture with a 10% share of hydrogen
in the local network and a 5% share
of hydrogen in the high-pressure
pipelines of our network.

Ing. Frantiek Cupr, MBA
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Efficient procurement, including
the purchase of natural

gas, increased productivity

in maintenance, as well as faster
removal of leaks, also contributed
to the good financial results, which
are on a par with previous years. By
timely and high-quality preparation
of investment actions, we were
able to procure the reconstructions
of local networks alternatively,
either through external contractors
ordirectly through our own
construction and assembly
activities, in order to select the most
cost-effective solution.

Ing. Martin Holly
General Director

All our actions and activities

have led to the confirmation

of SPP - distribucia's position

as a reliable natural gas distributor,
astable investor and an attractive
employer. We are optimistic
about the future, aware of our
professionalism, quality and
ability to create effective solutions
for our customers, employees

and the society. We will continue
to strengthen ourindispensable
positionin the Slovak energy
industry in the future.

Ing. Pavol Mertus
Member of the Board of Directors

STATEMENT BY THE COMPANY MANAGEMENT
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The company SPP - distribucia, a. s., as

the ownerand operator of a gas distribution
network of more than 33,400 km, provides
natural gas distribution in the territory

of the Slovak Republic to more than 1.5 million
points of delivery. The volume of such
distributed gas accounts for about 98%

of the total natural gas volume distributed

in the Slovak Republic for more than 94%

of the Slovak population with access to natural
gas.
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The reliability of operation of such
an extensive gas distribution
network requires a high level

of professionalism, continuous
development and consistent
monitoring of the condition

of pipelines and gas facilities

in order to ensure the technically
safe, userreliable and economically
efficient distribution of natural gas.

SPP - distribucia considers

a continuous natural gas supply

as one of the strategic pillars

for maintaining the energy security
of the Slovak Republic; therefore,
increased attention is paid to it

by the company. Furthermore,

the company concentrates on

the consistent implementation

of quality standards and a number
of other legislative requirements.
SPP - distribucia is a responsible
guarantor of a strategic gas
supply for household customers.
The company also performs
dispatching control and monitoring
of the gas distribution system,
including its physical balancing.

SPP - distribucia actively supports
the development of an open gas
environment through its activities.
The company aspires to be a stable
and efficient provider of professional
services for 25 distribution
network users as well as natural
gas customers of all categories. It
places emphasis on transparent
and non-discriminatory business
activities. It strives to continuously
improve the provided services,
which is reflected in the growing
options for electronic access to key
services.

33 400

kilometers of gas distribution network

94 /o

of Slovakia has access to natural gas

Priority business areas

for SPP - distribuciainclude

the sale of distribution capacity,
connections to the gas distribution
network, active promotion of the use
of natural gas as a comfortable,
economical and environmentally
friendly fuel, development activities,
and the operation and maintenance
of gas facilities.

The provision of safety

for the extensive gas distribution
network and its operation is
preceded by safety of people

in their own workplaces, which
remains the company's priority.
SPP - distribucia strives to set up its
processes optimally and to increase
the efficiency of the operating
activities resulting from its position
as anindependent operator

on the Slovak gas market.

SPP - distribucia perceives

the environmental dimension of its
activities in relation to climate
change and the resulting global
efforts to reduce greenhouse gas
emissions. The long-term goal

of the company is to create the most
favourable regulatory, legislative,
technical environment supporting
the largest possible implementation
of emission-free or low-emission
gases (biomethane, hydrogen) into
the gas infrastructure of the Slovak
Republic, including setting up
adequate support from public funds.
The biomethane station in JelSava
was the firstin Slovakia to start

the production of biomethane and
its injection into the distribution
network. In the last period, we

have registered an increased

interest of applicants for connection
of future biomethane stations to
the distribution network. On 1 June
2023, SPP - distribucia launched
the operation of the Renewable Gas
Registry, whose task s to issue,
transferand apply guarantees

of origin for renewable and
low-carbon gases. Itis a key
instrument to enable trade flows

of renewable gases through
Europe's gas infrastructure.

The launch of the registry will
contribute to the decarbonisation
of the gas sector and guarantees

of origin will find application

in a variety of industries.

Inan effort to contribute to tackling
climate change, the company,
following the example of developed
countries, plans to use the pipeline
network in the near future to
distribute mixtures of emission-free
gases together with natural gas.
The experience in practical mixing
of hydrogen into distributed

natural gas abroad and successful
laboratory tests at home have
created the preconditions

for the launch of hydrogen mixing
into the distribution network

in Slovakia as well. As part

of the H2PILOT pilot project,

SPP - distribucia has started

a practical test of natural gas
distribution with 10% of hydrogen
in the municipality of Blatna

na Ostrove. Based on successful
testing, in 2024, SPP - distribucia
was able to certify the network to
distribute a natural gas mixture with
a 10% share of hydrogen in the local
network and a 5% share of hydrogen
in the high-pressure pipelines.

COMPANY



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

AS AT 31 JULY 2024

Frantiek Cupr graduated from

the Faculty of Business and Economy
of Mendel Agricultural and Forestry
University Brno with a Master

of Business Administration (MBA)

in 2006. After graduating, he worked
for seven years with Jihomoravska
energetika, a. s., in Brno, in various
managerial positions, including
Deputy Director of the Sales Division
and Strategy Director. In 2005,

he started to work for the J&T
Investment Group, dealing with
energy projects. In the same year,
he founded a company trading

in electricity and natural gas, EP
Energy Trading, a. s. (former United
Energy Trading, a.s.), where he

Ing. Frantisek Cupr, MBA
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Adrian Kucek graduated from

the Faculty of Law of the Comenius
University in Bratislava, where

in 2005 he obtained the degree

of JUDr. After graduation he passed
the bar exam in the Slovak Bar
Association. Since 2009, he has
been acting as Executive Director
and Attorney at Kucek & Partners,

JUDr. Adrian Kucek
Vice-Chairman of the Board of Directors

ANNUAL REPORT

executed the function of Chairman

of the Board of Directors and CEO
until2012. In the period of 2006-2010,
hewas a member of the Supervisory
Board of Prazska energetika, a. s.
From 2009 to 2013, he operated as

a member of the Supervisory Board
of Prazska teplarenska, a. s. In 2013,
he became Chairman of the Board

of Directors of Stredoslovenska
energetika - distribucia, a. s. Since
24 January 2013, he has held

the position of Chairman of the Board
of Directors of SPP - distribdcia, a. s.
Since 24 January 2013, he has been
Chairman of the Board of Directors
of SPP - distribucia, a.s.

s.r.0.In 2021 he became Chariman

of Disciplinary Board of the Slovak
Bar Assaciation. Since January 2023
he has held the position of Legal
Adviser at the Public Procurement
Office. Since 20 December 2023, he
has been Vice-Chairman of the Board
of Directors of SPP - distribdcia, a.s.

FrantiSek Urbanik graduated

from the Faculty of Electrical
Engineering of the Brno University
of Technology. He obtained his PhD
atthe VSB - Technical University

of Ostrava, Faculty of Mining and
Geology. He started his professional
career at Vlarskeé strojirny, s. p.

in 1991 as Chief Power-Supply
Director. In the period from

1993 t0 1995, he was employed
with IMC, s. 1. 0. as system

engineer. In 1995 he co-founded
AISE,s.r. 0., where he worked as

a system engineer and marketer. He
executed projects of measurement
and control implementation,
reduction in energy intensity

of industrial enterprises and applied
development of data collection and

Marek Strpka graduated from

the Faculty of Commerce

of the University of Economics

in Bratislava and the Faculty of Law

of Comenius University in Bratislava.

He started his professional career
in 1996 in the St. Nicolaus Group,
holding various managerial
positions for eight years. In 2003 he
started to work for the AGROFERT
Group, first holding the position

of financial directorand member
of the Board of Directors of Duslo,
a.s.,and from 2008 as the CEO

In 1987, Pavol Mertus graduated
from the Faculty of Mining

of the Technical University in KoSice
and subsequently, he completed his
postgraduate studies in economics
and management of mining
industry. Until 1991, he worked as
mine inspector at the Mining Office
in Bratislava. In the period from
1992 to 1994, he acted as an adviser
to the Prime Minister of the Slovak
Republic. From 1994 t0 1999 he
held the position of General Director
of the State Environmental Fund

of the Slovak Republic and was

a member of the Supervisory Board
of V&eobecna Uverova banka. In

the period from 1999 to 2003, he
held the position of Business and
Economic Director of Pozagas,
a.s., where he was responsible

for economic management and
business matters of the company.

distribution methods. In 1997, he
became the Executive Officer and
Director of this company, where

he still works. In the period from
1997 to 2008 he was also a manager
of ENBI, s. . 0., where, in addition
to energy studies and audits, he
participated in the projects of EPC,
M&C of Johnson Controls, AISYS,
ERIS, and SIEMENS systems, and

in the application of TEDOM and
Caterpillar cogeneration units;

till 1999, he also held the position

of Executive Officer of the company.
InJanuary 2017, he became
amember of the Board of Directors
of SES BOHEMIAENGINEERING, a. s.
Since 26 May 2017, he has been
amember of the Board of Directors
of SPP - distribucia, a. s.

Ing. FrantiSek Urbanik
Member of the Board of Directors

and Vice-Chairman of the Board

of Directors of this company.

At the same time, he operated as
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
of the Association of Chemical and
Pharmaceutical Industry SR, Member
of the Board of Directors of the Slovak
Agriculture and Food Chamber,
member of Klub 500. Since 2013, he
has been the CEO of Stredoslovenska
energetika - distribucia, a. s. Since

11 November 2015, he has been

a member of the Board of Directors
of SPP - distribucia, a. s.

Mgr. Ing. Marek Strpka
Member of the Board of Directors

From 2003 to 2005, he acted as an
adviser to the Board of Directors and
a member of the Supervisory Board
of FIN-energy, a. s., Bratislava,
where he was in charge of energy
and gas projects. In the period
from 2008 to 2016, he acted as
General Director and Executive
Officer of CKD - Slovensko,
amember of the CKD Group Praha,
in charge of the complete operation
of the company acting in the energy
and gas industries, in the area

of technology. Since 2007, he has
been a member of statutory and
supervisory bodies of companies
within the SSE Holding, a.s., Zilina.
He currently holds the position

of Chairman of the Supervisory
Board of SSE Holding, a.s. Since

2 January 2017, he has been

a member of the Board of Directors
of SPP - distribucia, a. s.

Ing. Pavol Mertus
Member of the Board of Directors

COMPANY
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Martin Holly graduated from

the Faculty of Commerce

atthe University of Economics

in Bratislava with a specialization
in foreign trade. He also studied at

After graduating, he first worked
for several years as Senior Auditor
and Consultant at Arthur Andersen.
In 2003 he took up the position

of Director of the Economic

Ing. Martin Holly
General Director

Roman Filipoiu completed his
Financial Management studies

at the Faculty of Business
Management at the University

of Economics in Bratislava. Later
on, he obtained his MBA at Oxford
University in Great Britain. After
graduating, he started working
as an Auditor and Consultant

in Deloitte, where he participated
in audits of several major banks,
financialinstitutions, and media
companies in Slovakia. He started
working in the energy sector after
joining NAFTAa.s.in 2007. He
was responsible for controlling,

Ing. Roman Filipoiu, MBA
Head of the Economics and
Regulatory Division

ANNUAL REPORT

the Universidad de Granada in Spain.

Departmentin NAFTA a.s., where

he significantly contributed to

the restructuring of the company.
From July 2008 to September 2012, he
was General Director of NAFTA, a. s,
as well as a member of statutory
bodies in POZAGAS a. s. In October
2012 he moved to SPP - distribdcia,
a.s., within the SPP Group, where
he has held the position of General
Directorsince 1 December 2012.

price regulation, and later also
foraccounting, procurement,

and finance. In the same period

he also worked as Chairman

of the Supervisory Board in Karotaz
acementaces.r. 0. and Naftarska
leasingova spolocnosta. s. Since
April 2009, he has been Head

of the Economics and Regulatory
Division for SPP - distribucia, a. s.
At the same time, he acts as
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
in SPP - distribucia Servis, s. 1. 0., and
a member of the Supervisory Board
in Plynarenska metrologia, s.r. 0.

Rastislav Prelec graduated from

the Faculty of Electrical Engineering
at the Slovak University of Technology
in Bratislava in 1985 and completed
his Masters in Industrial Engineering
at Fachhochschule Ulmin Germany
in 2005. After completing his

studies, he worked in the Chemical
Technology Research Institute as
Head of the Automation Department
until 1991. In the period from 1991

to 1995 he was self-employed

in the field of industrial automation.
In 1995 he joined Slovensky
plynarensky priemysel, a. s. as
Telemetric Equipment Technician. He
later worked as Head of the Control
Systems Department. Since 1997

Miroslav Horvath completed his
studies at the Faculty of Mechanical
Engineering of the University

of Zilina, specializing in the gas
industry. After graduating, he
started working for Slovensky
plynarensky priemysel, §. p., as
Technician of Gasification in 1999.
Subsequently he worked in several
positions, among others also as
Head of the Centre District Gasworks
in Povazska Bystrica. In July 2004
he became Head of the Local

Marek Paal, specialising in the gas
industry, completed his studies

at the Faculty of Mechanical
Engineering of the University

of Zilina in 2003. However, he
started working in this field in 1996,
when he joined the Slovak Gas
Dispatching at Slovensky plynarensky
priemysel, a.s. (SPP), holding
various posts. Since 2004 he worked
at SPP as Director of the Distribution
Capacities Sales Division. In

2006, he participated in the legal

he has worked as Project Manager
and Co-Manager on the following
projects: Reconstruction and
Remote Control of Transfer Stations
(SCADA SPD), Remote Monitoring
of Regulation Stations (SCADA

0Z), Dispatching Control Systems
(SCADA), Remote Monitoring

of Large Customers, Mobile
Workplaces, and the Distribution
Information System. In 2009

he was appointed Director

of the Maintenance and Metering
Division in SPP - distribdcia, a. s.,
where he served until T July 2013,
when he became Head of the Network
Operation and Asset Management
Division in SPP - distribucia, a. s.

Unitin Prievidza. After the legal
unbundling in 2007, he joined

SPP - distribucia, a. s., in the post
of Head of the Regional Centre
Eastin Kosice. Since 2009, he has
worked as Head of the maintenance
departmentin the Maintenance and
Metering Division and subsequently
as Deputy to the Section Head. On

1 July 2013 he was appointed Head
of the Maintenance and Metering
Division for SPP - distribucia, a. s.

unbundling process of SPP into
three separate companies and led
the project for the implementation

of a distribution information system
for liberalised gas trading. After

the legal unbundling, he continued to
work as Director of the Distribution
Capacities Sales Division in the now
separated company SPP - distribucia,
a.s. Since the restructuring

of the company in 2009, he

has held the position of Head

of the Distribution Services Division.

Ing. Rastislav Prelec
Head of the Network Operation
and Asset Management Division

Ing. Miroslav Horvath
Head of the Maintenance and
Metering Division

Ing. Marek Paal
Head of the Distribution Services
Division

COMPANY
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Ing. Irenej Denkocy
Head of the Investment Division

Mgr. Ing. FrantiSek Kajanek
Head of the Human Resources and
QHSE Division

ANNUAL REPORT

Irenej Denkocy graduated from

the Faculty of Business Management
of the University of Economics

in Bratislava with a specialization

in financial management. He
continued his studies by qualifying
forand gaining ACCA membership.
After graduating, he first worked as
an assistant auditor at Ernst & Young,
where he participated in the audits
of several significant businesses

FrantiSek Kajanek graduated from
the Mining-Geology Faculty at

the Mining College in Ostrava with
a specialization in economics and
the management of mines, and
later studied law at the Comenius
University. He has been actively
engaged in the area of human
resources since 1995, working at
NCHZ a. s., Novaky, for the Office
for State Services, and for the Ministry
of Labour, Social Affairs and Family

in Slovakia. In 2009 he joined

SPP - distribdcia, a.s., in the position
of Senior Controller. Starting from
2011, he worked in the position

of Head of Investments Controlling
and Asset Registry. From July 2014
toJanuary 2015 he was nominee
Head of the Investments Division
of SPP - distribucia a. s. Since

1 February 2015, he has been Head
of the Investments Division.

of the Slovak Republic. Starting from
2007, he worked for NAFTA, a.s.,
where he held the position of Director
of Human Resources from 1 January
2008. In addition to human resources,
he was also responsible for corporate
culture and internal communication
development. Since 1 December
2013, he has been a team-member

of SPP - distribucia, a.s. as Head

of the Human Resources and QHSE
Division.

SUPERVISORY

BOARD

AS AT 31 JULY 2024

Peter Nosal completed his
Financial Management studies at
the Faculty of Business Management
at the University of Economics

in Bratislava. During his studies,

he started working in the financial
sector. First as a broker at Lifox,
a.s.,and after graduation at Agrofin,
o.c.p. From 2001 to 2005 he held
the position of Sales Director at
Slovak Brokerage House, 0.c.p., a.s.

Gary Mazzotti B.A.(Hons) A.C.A.,

Vice-Chairman of the Supervisory Board

Members:

Pavol Korienek

Milan Boris

Mgr. Zoran Kupkovic

Ing. Matej Riecky, LL.M. MBA

From 2005t0 2010, he worked as
General Director at Capital Invest,
0.c.p.,a.s.,and from2010to 2016 at
FPD CORPORATION SK, a.s., as Chief
Investment Officer. Since 2019, he has
worked in the financial market as an
independent consultant and investor.
Since 20 December 2023, he has been
Chairman of the Supervisory Board

of SPP - distribucia, a.s.

..
Ing. Peter Nosal'

Chairman of the Supervisory
Board

COMPANY



ORGANIZATIONAL
STRUCTURE

GENERAL
MEETING

-

BOARD
OF DIRECTORS

SUPERVISORY

SAFE AND RELIABLE

DISTRIBUTION

SAFETY OF
THENETWORKAND
REDUCTION OF
METHANE EMISSIONS

We are improving the safety

of distribution by stepping up leak
checks on steel pipelines and
increasing the pace of network
recovery, thus making a significant
contribution to reducing methane
emissions. We manage to
continuously reduce these also by
tightly controlling and shortening
the time it takes to fix the faults and
leaks that are found.

INTEGRATION OF
RENEWABLE GASES
INTO THE DISTRIBUTION
NETWORK

The long-term vision of the Slovak
gas sectoris to gradually replace
fossil natural gas by emission-free

and low-pressure pipelinesin towns
and municipalities.

The company can make a significant
contribution to reducing

the ecological footprint of gas
consumption by combining natural
gas with hydrogen, biomethane or
synthetic gas. Based on our own
tests and a number of international
studies, we believe that the gas
distributed can contain up to

20% of hydrogen without major
modifications to the existing gas
network. Mixing 20% of hydrogen
into the natural gas stream will
eventually reduce the carbon
footprint of consumption by 7%,
due to the lower calorific value

of hydrogen.

We are working with major expert
institutions to investigate the impact
of hydrogen on the existing gas
distribution network and are
monitoring progress abroad by
actively participating in various

own consumption. In the Recovery
Plan, the government is counting on
financial support for the conversion
of biogas plants to biomethane
plants; given their capacity, it will
be possible to connect up to a third
of them to our high-pressure gas
network.

Biomethane is carbon neutral (it has
up to a negative carbon footprint
inthe case of waste treatment), so
inthe form of bioCNG and bioLNG
itis a particularly suitable choice
fordecarbonizing transport. Its
combustion produces no particulate
matter, making a significant
contribution to cleaner and
healthier air. The basic raw material
for the most advanced biomethane
production is chicken and cow
manure and various biodegradable
wastes. The composition

of biomethane is almost identical

to natural gas, but unlike this fossil
fuel, itis produced from local
renewable raw materials or directly

or low emission gases (biomethane, initiatives. Leading the Knowledge from waste, making its production
COMPLIANCE / hydrogen). The newly adopted Sharing working group sustainable.
PROGRAMME \ European taxonomy - the provisional within Ready4H2, an organisation
\ MANAGER \ classification of natural gas as of over 70 European gas distributors, In the short term, SPP - distribucia
} SUPERVISION a sustainable investment - makes represents one example. will be able to connect
1 the environmental sustainability approximately 34 biogas stations
AUDIT | of gas conditional on a transition FIRST STATION ALREADY toits high-pressure network after
GENERAL to renebwe;%l?fSaerd(;ow-':grbf)n SUPPLIES BIOMETHANE theic;cotrjversHionto biotr;wetthetmte
gases by . Today, itis clear production. However, the tota
DIRECTOR (CEO) in professional circles that the gas TO THE GAS NETWORK potential for biomethane production
infrastructure has a future with There are currently several dozens from biodegradable municipal
hydrogen. Naturally, this will of biogas plantsin operation waste, kitchen and restaurant waste
LEGAL BOD AND CEO firstinvolve mixing hydrogen into in Slovakia. The first one already and livestock excreta, according to
UNIT SUPPORT UNIT the natural gas to create a mixture has a plant to purify biogas and the latest Integrated National Energy

of these gases with a predetermined
hydrogen volume ratio.

obtain pure biomethane. Itis situated
in JelSava and after production
expansion from May 2023, it can
produce 180 MWh of biomethane

and Climate Plan of the Slovak
Republic, can reach up to almost
400 million m? of biomethane.
More than 33 thousand kilometres

/ ‘ [ K ‘ ’ / ‘ [ \ ‘ l \ l ’ \ The company has moved forward

NETWORK HUMAN ‘ significantly in this area in 2024, as per day, which itinjects into the gas of Slovak gas pipelines will thus
ECONOMY AND OPERATION MAINTENANCE INVESTMENT DISTRIBUTION RESOURCES ig%&?:gi;gi:{jﬁ;ﬁz g?:!tf;jal distribution network. Z??rt]relt;:t\/ei:gr]t;tzlr]r?gr:zv:a?ent
REGULATION AND ASSET AND METERING DIVISION SERVICES AND QHSE .
DIVISION MANAGEMENT DIVISION DIVISION DIVISION gas and hydrogen up to 5% Current biogas plants produce therefore undoubtedly be called
DIVISION of the volume for high-pressure electricity from biogas, which is “the network of the green future”.
networks and regulation stations fed into the electricity grid, while
and 10% of the volume for medium- the heat is mostly used for their
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SMART METERING
ROLL-OUT

As part of the pilot project,

the company began installing
G6-sized smart membrane

home gas meters in the network

in 2019. Besides the basic function
of measuring the volume of gas
flowing through, the gas meters
have the possibility of transmitting
daily measurement data and
selected alarm states of the meter,
such as exceeding the maximum
hourly flow rate or unauthorized
interference with the meter. An
important function of these meters
from the point of view of effective
provision of the service to gas
suppliers is the possibility of remote
interruption of the supply of natural
gas. These types of gas meters are
so farinstalled at selected delivery
points, where we register multiple
requests forinterruption of natural
gas supply from suppliers, delivery
pointsin the event of suspected
unauthorized consumption, or with
difficult access to the meter. As of 31
July 2024, 6,500 smart gas meters
have been installed in the network.

From 2022 onwards, membrane
industrial gas metersin sizes G10

- G40 were also installed for end
customers, mainly in the category
of small consumption, but

for medium consumption customers.
The purpose of their use is identical
to that of home smart gas meters,
whereby in many cases, especially
in the category of medium
consumption, they replace electronic
quantity calculators and additional
transmission devices, streamlining
the maintenance activities

of metering as well as reducing

the actual costs of maintenance and
renewal of these devices. Currently,
there are 1,074 such smart gas
meters installed in the network,
and their number will increase

in the coming period.

ANNUAL REPORT

THIRD-PARTY DAMAGE
TO GAS FACILITIES

The company recorded an increase
in cases of damage to gas facilities
by third parties in the evaluated
period from 1 August 2023 to

31 July 2024. Damages were
recorded mainly in the performance
of earthworks in the protection
zones of gas facilities, where in 70%
of the cases the gas installation had
not been staked out.

In order to eliminate damage to
gas facilities, steps were taken to
improve existing procedures and
implement new ones in the areas
of control of work in the protection
zone of gas facilities, web forms
and external communication.

The company continuesin 2024
with free stakingup to 100 m. In
examining cases of damage to gas
facilities, we continue to cooperate
with the Slovak Trade Inspectorate
and Regulatory Office for Network
Industries (URSO).

ENSURING ASTANDARD
FORSECURITY OF
SUPPLY

In order to address and

prevent a potential emergency,

SPP - distribucia, as the distribution
network operator, ensured

the standard of security of gas
supply for household customers
inaccordance with the applicable
legislation in the period from
November 2023 to March 2024.

In particular, the tool was to

use natural gas reserves inan
underground storage facility also
intended for balancing the network,
while security of supply was also
ensured through contractually
agreed auxiliary gas supplies to
cover the full needs for meeting
security standards in line with
economic and efficiency criteria.
The fulfilment of the said measures,

also during the period from
November 2023 to March 2024,
shows that the company was and

is able to responsibly fulfilits
security of gas supply obligations
and ensure continuous and

reliable distribution of gas for all
households in the Slovak Republic
evenin the event of an emergency.
At the same time, in 2023 we
intensively prepared for the supply
of gas to Slovakia during

the 2023/2024 winter season due
to the ongoing uncertain gas supply
situation caused by the geopolitical
events of February 2022, which may
threaten the transport of gas from
the Russian Federation to Europe.

DETECTION OF
UNAUTHORIZED
CONSUMPTION OF
NATURAL GAS

We also continued during this
period successfully to detect
unauthorized consumption in order
to achieve areduction in losses
from the distribution of natural gas.
Company employees identified
and documented almost 700 cases
of unauthorized consumption
amounting to more than

1.75 million m? of gas.

In order to improve the safety

of the facilities operated, we carried
out dozens of blanket checks aimed
at detecting and documenting
unauthorized consumption. To this
end, more than 65,000 delivery
points were inspected in the past
period, with hundreds of cases

of demonstrable interference with
metering instruments or even
directly into the pipe were detected.
Based on facts suggesting the crime
of gas theft, we brought dozens

of charges.

MAP OF THE SPP - DISTRIBUCIA
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK

CZECH REPUBLIC

AUSTRIA

GAS ACCESS COVERAGE
RATE

In Slovakia, gas is delivered to
77% of municipalities, where
currently 94% of the population
live. In view of the level of coverage
achieved in municipalities, further
development of the distribution
network is no longer required, but
due to the significant development
of the construction of residential
sites, the continuous connection
of these sites to the distribution

POLAND

LEGEND

UKRAINE

Transport pipelines 3xDN 1200, 1TxDN 1400

HUNGARY

PN 40
PN 25

KOSICE  Transport pipelines 3xDN 1200, 1xDN 1400
DN 700, PN 63 - pipeline Ruska - Mokry Haj

KS - Compressor stations

VPS - Slovak release stations

PZ - Underground storage facilities

network has been carried out
forseveralyears. Asarule,

the residential sites in question
are situated in already covered
municipalities, so the distribution
network is becoming denser.

In the period from August

2023 to July 2024, the volume

of gas distributed through

the SPP - distribucia network was
lower compared to the period
from August 2022 to July 2023,
with a decrease in gas distribution
mainly in the period from February

Distribution of natural gas via the SPP-D distribution network
in the period from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2024 (billion m%/15°C)

to April 2024. The decrease was
dueto anincrease in the average air
temperature compared to the same
periodin 2023. The decrease in gas
consumption in the Slovak Republic
was also recommended at the EU
level under Council Regulation
(EU) 2022/1369 on coordinated
demand reduction measures

for gas, requiring a reduction

in Member States' gas consumption
in the period from 1 April 2023 to

31 March 2024.

Distributed volumes

*12-month period ended by 31 July

2020* 2021*

4.85 5.41

2022* 2023* 2024*
5.00 419 4.06
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Investment in the renovation/reconstruction of the network in the period from 2020 to 31 July 2024 (in € mil.)

2020* 2021* 2022* 2023* 2024*
Investmentin renovation 32 33 37 38 47
Number of km of local network gas
pipelines upgraded (low- and medium-
pressure gas pipelines) 127 131 141 127 159

*12-month period ended by 31 July

Length of distribution network in the period from 2020 to 31 July 2024 (in km)

2019* 2020* 2021* 2022* 2023* 2024*
High-pressure gas pipelines 6,281 6,285 6,274 6,273 6,273 6,271
Medium-pressure and low-
pressure gas pipelines 27,077 27,069 27,062 27,077 27,080 27,074
Total 33,358 33,354 33,336 33,350 33,353 33,345

*12-month period ended by 31 July

Classification of local network gas pipelines in the period from 2020 to 31 July 2024 (in km)

2019~ 2020* 2021~ 2022 * 2023~ 2024*
Steel 12,289 12,091 11,907 11,713 11,564, 11,399
Polyethylene 14,788 14,978 15,155 15,363 15,516, 15,676

*12-month period ended by 31 July

18 ANNUAL REPORT
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SLOVAK GAS
DISTRIBUTION NETWORK
HAS BEEN CERTIFIED
-OR HYDROGEN

The gas pipelines in Slovakia have been
certified for the distribution of hydrogen, in
addition to natural gas and biomethane. This
certification increases the potential for local
production of green hydrogen and connects
the Slovak distribution network with the future
"European Hydrogen Backbone.”

In 2022, SPP - distribdcia, a. s.
initiated the H2Pilot project,

a pilot distribution of a mixture of
natural gas and hydrogen to Slovak
households. This project marked
the beginning of a significant
transformation in Slovakia's gas

ROCNA SPRAVA

infrastructure. The project was
conducted in Blatna na Ostrove,
where 300 residents were supplied
with a mixture of natural gas and
hydrogen. One of the project’s
primary outcomes was the
confirmation of the safe operation of

all affected facilities with a mixture
of natural gas and 10 percent
hydrogen. This conclusion validated
the findings of pertinent scientific
studies published in the preceding
period, including those conducted by
the THyGA initiative.

The General Director of SPP -
distribucia, Martin Holly, has

stated that the H2Pilot project has
initiated preparations for the future
distribution of hydrogen across the
entire Slovak gas infrastructure.
"Regardless of when the first
molecule of hydrogen will appearin
our network, we have devoted our
efforts to systematically adjusting
the entire infrastructure now,”
Holly said. "That's why this year

we have launched an ambitious
project to certify all components

of the gas distribution network for
future hydrogen use, with a realistic
volume in the shortand medium
term,” he added.

The certification, conducted

under the auspices of TUV SUD
Slovakia, entailed an independent
assessment of the compatibility of
each infrastructure element that will
be in contact with the new mixed
gasin the future. "As the distribution
network was constructed exclusively
for the use of natural gas, not only
pipeline materials and welds, but
also valves, caps, gauges, regulators
and components of control stations
had to undergo a compatibility
verification process,” explained
Marek Smatana, Head of SPP -
distribucia's Head of Strategy and
Network Integrity Department. He
stated that it was a complex and
highly detailed process, which
entailed analysing the design and

Following an expert
assessment by TUV SUD,

it has been confirmed

that the high-pressure

gas network and control
stations are compatible

with a 5% hydrogen content
in @ mixture with natural gas.

operational documentation of
individual network elements and
evaluating their integrity in the event
of operation with a new medium - a
mixture of natural gas and hydrogen
inavolume of 5% and 10%,
respectively. “The assessment is
primarily based on the equipment'’s
readiness to operate with a mixture
of natural gas and hydrogen, as
declared by the manufacturer when
the equipment was designed and
functionally tested,” Smatana added.

Following an expert assessment by
TUV SUD, it has been confirmed that
the high-pressure gas network and
control stations are compatible with
a 5% hydrogen content in a mixture
with natural gas. In local networks,
namely low- and medium-pressure
gas pipelines, compatibility has
been demonstrated up to a level

of 10% hydrogen in the mixture. In
light of the successful certification,
SPP - distribucia will continue

to prepare its high-pressure
network and control stations for

a higher proportion of hydrogen

in the mixture. This will entail the
replacement of certain elements
with full hydrogen-compatible
equipment.

Martin Holly identifies two key
reasons why the successful
certification of the gas infrastructure
isimportant. The first reason is

that the Slovakian gas distribution

network is now fully prepared to
accept natural gas with hydrogen
directly from the transit network of
eustream, a. s., whose infrastructure
forms part of the future European
hydrogen system, the so-called
European Hydrogen Backbone.
"Hydrogen from this route is
expected to emerge in the medium
term, with the level of hydrogen
not exceeding 2% for the first few
years,” he explained. "The second
importance of certification is to
supportintentions to produce 'green’
hydrogen at a local level. Here, the
expectation is a bit more optimistic,
with the first local green hydrogen
producers expected to connect to
our grid within five years, and the
volume of hydrogen admixture not
exceeding 10%," Holly concluded.

The European Union is committed to
continuously reducing greenhouse
gas emissions with a target of 55%
reduction by 2030 compared to 1990
levels. Low-emission or renewable
gases, including hydrogen, will play
asignificant role in achieving this
goal. The gas sector is therefore
working collectively to progressively
decarbonise stored, transported
and distributed natural gas by
implementing renewable gases.

SAFE AND RELIABLE DISTRIBUTION
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CUSTOMER
ORIENTATION

RELATIONS WITH GAS SUPPLIERS,
LIBERALIZED GAS MARKET

SPP - distribucia provided access

to the distribution network and gas distribution
for 27 users of the distribution network (gas
suppliers and large gas customers with

a separate contract on access to the distribution

network and gas distribution) as of 31 July 2024.

ANNUAL REPORT
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4052

new delivery points

83 %

The situation of suppliers on

the gas market is stable and

in the previous reporting period
none of the gas suppliers ceased
operations, on the contrary,
several gas suppliers strengthened
the composition of their portfolio
and new suppliers were able to
successfully establish themselves
on the market. The market has seen
aresurgence of supplier switching
after the previous downturn caused
by high gas prices. We see an
increase in the number of supplier
switches in 2024 compared to

the same period in 2023. We are
constantly making efforts to develop
the gas market in Slovakia. We are
improving and streamlining the user
interface of the key IT system used
by natural gas suppliers, increasing
transparency and expanding access
toinformation for users of our
distribution network. We are adding
functionality to the gas supplier
systems to improve access to data
on delivery points so that gas
suppliers have all the information
they need to ensure a smooth supply
and a seamless customer switch

Number of users of the distribution network

applications submitted online

to another supplier. Our company
continues to provide the Ministry

of Economy of the Slovak

Republic with gas consumption

data forindividual categories

of delivery points on a monthly basis
for the purpose of providing energy
subsidies and compensation to gas
suppliers.

LEGISLATION AND
REGULATION

In the reporting period,

the established trend of adopting
numerous changes and amendments
continued, both in the Energy

Act and in the Regulatory Act,

as wellasin the gas market

rules. Among the amendments,
the greatest attention was paid to
strengthening consumer protection
in gas supply contracts and to

the regulation of physical readings
for household customers with

an annual consumption of up to
200 m?. In the crisis requlation,

the legislation further clarified
some provisions shaping the legal
framework for the provision

of compensation to suppliers

and subsidies to end-users.

The Regulation of the Government
of the Slovak Republic provides

for state-subsidized gas supply
prices for household and small
business customers or for selected
vulnerable customers by the end

of 2024. With effect from 29
November, the firstamendment

to the Operating Regulations

of SPP - distribdcia, a.s. came into
force, which mainly concerned

the content update of the provisions
following the adoption of the new
gas market rules. In November 2023,
the Regulatory Office for Network
Industries issued a new Price
Decision No. 0029/2024/P as

of 29 November 2023 with effect
from 1 January 2024. Pursuant to
the Regulation of the Government
of the Slovak Republic No. 472/2023
Coll., part of gas distribution

fees shall be compensated

by the Ministry of Economy

of the Slovak Republic and the price
for distribution for end-users
remained at the 2023 level.

Number of vendor changes

2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
(until (until (until (until
31.7) 31.7) 31.7) 31.7)

34

31

26

2022 2023 2024

(until (until (until 2017
31.7) 31.7) 31.7)
60000 —
48 828
27 —
25 25
30000
0

2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
(until (until (until (until (until (until
31.7) 31.7) 31.7) 31.7) 31.7) 31.7)

54447 55569
51008

32441

20005
16030
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SHORTENING

THE PROCESS

OF CONNECTING
CUSTOMERS TO
THEDISTRIBUTION
NETWORK

Households and Small Customers
Between 1 August 2023 and 31
July 2024, our company provided
applicants for connection to

the distribution network with

the possibility of personal contact
in two Customer Offices in Zilina,
and in KoSice with the possibility
of making an appointment

for a specific selected date via

the reservation system on our
website. In September 2021, our

company opened a new Customer
Centre in Bratislava on Platennicka
Street. We were available every
day for our customers booked
through the Reservation System,
and we also added customer hours
forunbooked customers three days
a week. Applicants for connection, or
for technical changes to an existing
delivery point, are processed
without long waiting times with

the possibility of convenient free
parking. Besides personal contact,
applicants for connection could also
use contact by mailand an on-line
form on our website.

SPP - distribucia complied with
quality standards for: (i) setting
business and technical conditions
for connection at 100% and (ii)

Number of vendor changes by category

setting business and technical
conditions for changing the delivery
parameters at the delivery point
(comments on technical changes

at the delivery point) also at

100% (in accordance with Decree

of the Regulatory Office for Network
Industries No. 278/2012 Coll.).
During the period between August
2023 and July 2024, our company
connected 4,052 new delivery
points to the distribution network

in the categories of household, small
use, medium use and large-scale
use. We have successfully continued
to improve the connection process
and have taken care to shorten

the connection process overall.

51328
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41515 43676
B 25596
20571
15132
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2016 2017 2018 (untit31.7.) 2019 (untit31.7.) 2020 (untit31.7.) 2021 (untit31.7.) 2022 (untit31.7.) 2023 (untit31.7.) 2024 (untit31.7.)

Number of concluded contracts for connection to

the distribution network and number of statements on
technical and commercial changes at delivery points
from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024

Conclusion of the connection process -

contracts for connection to the distribution
network in the HOUSEHOLD category - houses
and apartment buildings. Meter installation
from 1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024
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Connection process -

main steps of the process on

the SPP - distribucia side:

* issuing technical conditions
of connection and draft contract
of connection to the distribution
network,

e statement on the project
documentation,

e administration of the application
for meterinstallation and
the installation of the meter
at the delivery point.

Medium and large customers

SPP - distribucia, through key
customer managers constantly
strives to improve its personal
approach to customers with annual
natural gas demand exceeding
60,000 m®. Managers provide
customers with expert advice

and propose suitable technical

and business solutions before
implementing a new connection to
the distribution network or before
implementing a technical change at
an existing delivery point, in order to
provide customers with the greatest
possible comfort and an individual
approach to the gasification of their
project. The same individual
approach of the managers also
appliesin the case of development
projects in the preparation stage
or the actualimplementation

in the whole of Slovakia. A key
activity of KAMis to directly
address customers with an offer

Requests for connection to the distribution network and
for comments on technical change in the period from

1 August 2023 to 31 July 2024

of business and technical support
for the installation of cogenerariion
units, whereby customers can

save up to 40% of primary energy
compared to the separate production
of electricity and heat.

DIGITALIZATION OF
SERVICES - WEB
APPLICATIONS FOR
CUSTOMERS

Customer account/ registration on
the website

Registration simplifies

the submission of applications

and enables the progress
monitoring of the application
preparation process and possible
complaints for the following

types of applications: Request

for comment on the existence and
route of gas facilities and Request
for comment on the implementation
of activities in the protection and
safety zone. This service has been
running since February 2021.

Our customers currently have

the opportunity to submit

a connectionrequest, a request
forcomment on a technical change at
an existing delivery point, a request
forthe installation of a meter
orarequest foranaddendum

to a concluded contract fully
electronically. Between 1 August
2023 and 31 July 2023, 7,655

online requests were submitted

for connection and technical change
at the existing delivery point, which
amounts to 85% of the total number
of applications submitted.
Itis already our standard practice
to send invoices for connection
fees from connection contracts
electronically to the applicant's
email address.
We sent e-mail notifications to
customers, drawing attention to
the approaching expiry of the most
important deadlines in the process
of connection, which include:
e the time limit for payment
of the connection fee invoice,
e the time limit for them to send
the signed connection contract,
e the expiry date of the connection
contract.
We contacted customers by phone
if they had not specified an e-mail
addressin theirrequest. These
notifications also save significant
time and resources based on
customer feedback, while also
contributing to their comfort
in the connection process.
We are pleased to continue to report
increased interestin our online
services. From 1 August 2023 to
31 July 2024, the possibility to file
an application for connection and
foratechnical change through an
online app was utilised by as many
as 85% applicants and an application
for the installation of meter (all
types) by as many as 88% applicants.

Applications for installation of meters
for the period from 1 August 2023

to 31 July 2024

@) 7655 85,2% Online
M 479

648 7,2% In person

7,6 %% By post

@) 8859 88,3% Online

& 27

242

9,2% By post

2,4% In person
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EMPLOYEES AND
THE DEVELOPMENT OF
CORPORATE CULTURE

Support of Individual Performance and Initiative

As in previous years, training is one

of the main priorities of the Human Resources
Department at SPP - distribucia. We recognize
the great importance of training fora number
of reasons. Supporting employee training

Is a fundamental element of our strategy,
which significantly improves professional
qualifications, efficiency and the quality

of work.
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Atthe same time, it strengthens
employee motivation and
satisfaction, which contributes to
reducing turnover and optimising
recruitment and training costs.
Investments in professional
development also lead to innovative
approaches and new perspectives,
which are key to the company's long
term growth and competitiveness.
By providing employees with
training opportunities, we foster

a positive corporate culture

and ensure the flexibility and
sustainability of our companyina
dynamically changing environment.

Compulsory and regular training

in accordance with legislative
requirements is the most common at
SPP - distribucia. In addition to said
compulsory trainings, employees
had the opportunity to participate
ina wide range of training activities
aimed at developing specific skills
in professional areas, managerial
competencies, IT skills as well as
interpersonal skills. Employees also
regularly participated in conferences
and seminars on a variety of topical
issues, many of which were
published in the employee magazine
DISTRO to raise awareness

of the issues. This approach

ensures that important information
is available to the widest possible
audience within the company.

In addition to the above-mentioned
training concept, there are currently
four specific development training

programmes within our company,
aimed at different target groups:
"Full Gas" career programme,
"Supervisor Successor Training
Programme”, "Graduate” and "Young
Gasworker”.

The aim of the "Full Gas" career
programme is to develop key
employees in both managerial

and expert positions and to
maintain valuable specific
know-how within the company.
The second run of the programme
was completed in the fall of 2023,
and feedback from programme
participants has been very positive.
We plan to launch the third run

of the programme in spring 2025,
with the preparatory phase already
underway.

The purpose of the Supervisor
Successor Training Programme

is to provide a group of talented
employees, primarily from

the Maintenance and Measurement
Division, with specific activities

to develop their professional

and personal skills and prepare
them for the role of supervisors.
The reason for this is the need to
ensure a smooth renewal of human
resources without loss of know-how
due to retirements. The first run

of the programme will be launched
inthe fall of 2024.

The other two programmes are
aimed at young people. The "Young
Gasworker" programme is

28 1323

Number of employees

designed for high school students
and offers the opportunity to
complete an apprenticeship in our
company during their final year
and subsequently become part

of it. The “Graduate” programme is
designed for university graduates
with the aim of producing
professionals for various sections
of the company. We have earmarked
eight posts for this purpose.

We have responded to suggestions
from staff for English language
training opportunities and have set
up internal conversation groups with
a tutor. In the future, we are also
considering educational activities to
promote mental health.

SAFETYISOUR
PRIORITY

Animportant and integral part

of SPP - distribucia's tasks is

to take care of the health and
safety of employees at work
while respecting the individual
components of the environment.
The basic pillar of the health and
safety management system,
which is certified in the company
in compliance with ISO 9001,

SO 14001 and ISO 45001, is

the implementation of the Integrated
Management System Policy. This
policy includes a commitment to
meeting legislative requirements,
taking measures to ensure

the prevention of environmental
pollution, regular monitoring

EMPLOYEES AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF CORPORATE CULTURE

27



28

and continuous improvement

of the working environment. It

also includes a commitment by

the company management to
provide adequate financial, human
and time resources based on
identified hazards, threats, risks
and environmental aspects in order
to eliminate risks that could cause
harm to health or the environment.

Asafe and healthy working
environment is our ongoing goal.
We achieve this by introducing safe
working procedures, appropriate
work organisation and improving
working conditions with regard

to health factors in the working
environment. We involve employees
in the process of selecting personal
protective equipment, controlling
the working environment and
addressing important occupational
health and safety issues. We

use a training system to improve
knowledge and professional skills
with an emphasis on risk prevention
and reduction. We provide training
in the form of practical training,
which also develops practical skills
in employees leading to safe work
and environmental protection. This
year, we launched a training centre
(polygon) in Zilina, where our new
colleagues have the opportunity to
gain practical skills in the operation
and maintenance of gas equipment
in a simulated and controlled safe
environment. We also encourage
our business partners to use safe
and environmentally sound working
procedures.

We prioritize preventive measures
and systematically improve
conditions for safe work and
protection of all environmental
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components. We effectively manage
potential risks by complying with
applicable legal requirements,
international standards, as well

as by adhering to our obligations
under internal legislation. We
regularly monitor the working and
natural environment and carry
outan assessment of the state

of occupational health and safety
and the environment and eliminate
potential risks.

Through implementing

the aforementioned activities and
complying with the IMS Policy
programmes, we are succeeding

in ensuring adequate and healthy
working conditions. The positive
trend in OHS is also reflected

in the favourable development

of the occupational accident rate and
in the fact that we have not recorded
any serious, fatal or mass accidents
at work. Safety is and will continue
to be our priority.

DEVELOPMENT
OF CORPORATE
CULTURE

Since 2023, our priority is to
revitalise the SPP - distribucia's
Code of Ethics. Expanding and
updating the company’s Code

of Ethics is essential given

the rapid changes in our business
environment. Itis a step towards
adapting more flexibly and
effectively to new challenges,
including responding quickly to
ethical dilemmas and situations.
Our affiliation to the EPH Group
obliges us to better reflect

the Group's values, which is
essential for maintaining integration
and coherence across the Group.

Improving our corporate culture
is a prerequisite for retaining
our employees, supporting

the company's performance and
successfully preparing for future
challenges.

Compared to the previous version

of the Code, we have implemented
a change by adding a fifth value

- "Environment” - and expanding
ittoinclude the "Community”

value. This change was motivated

by the growing importance

of Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR), with care for the community
being animportant aspect. Today,
the new version of the Code of Ethics
reflects the 5 core values of our
company: honouring people, valuing
resources, initiative, integrity,
environment and community.
Moreover, the updated Code

of Ethicsincludes model situations
for each value and ethical dilemmas
that might arise, and the proper
course of action an individual should
take in such situations.

To encourage active employee
participation, a survey was
conducted on the internal
communication channel -
“Intranet” - during February

2024. The questionnaire was

aimed at surveying the readership
of the updated Code of Ethics

on the Intranet; modifying

the Company’s values; assessing
the Company's adherence to its
values; and discussing the values
and the Code of Conduct. The results
of the questionnaire, which involved
241 employees, provided valuable
information on their perceptions

of the company culture and values,
identified areas forimprovement,

and employee preferences
regarding the implementation

of the Code of Ethics. Based on these
findings, an action plan has been
developed andis being implemented
throughout 2024.

CORPORATE SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

At SPP - distriblcia, we have

a common idea of how to work well
and properly together. We share
with the world the values that guide
our daily lives. We recognise that
the time we spend working together
makes up a significant part of our
lives. That's why we make sure that
itisinvested in the relationships

we have with our customers and
partners, as well as for the country
in which we live. At SPP - distribucia,
we believe in equal opportunities
foralland create a working
environment of mutual respect,
courtesy, trust, sense of belonging
and safety. We work in a responsible,
fairand reliable mannerand
inaccordance with the rules; we
avoid conflicts of interest; we

build transparent relationships
with the external environment. We
meet our needs in a way that does
not limit the possibilities of future
generations; we cherish the values
of social responsibility, therefore
our activities, sponsorship and
donations are aimed at the support
and development of disadvantaged
groups, health service, sports
activities, as well as cultural

and educational development.

The projects and initiatives we
support are linked to our company's
goals and mission. It is our priority
that all sponsorship and donation
activities of the company are

transparently documented and can
be verified at any time.

In this regard, we would like to
highlight our employees who
actively participated in several
charity events during the period,
exemplarily demonstrating

the "Community” value of helping
others. In the September charity
fund-raising "White Crayon”

for the Union of the Blind and
Partially Sighted of Slovakia,
aremarkable €1,988 was raised. Our
company doubled this amount, with
the final contribution amounting

to €3,976. Within the Plynarenska
pokladia non-investment

fund, €3,420 was collected at

SPP - distribdcia and €60 at
Plynarenska metrolégia, which was
transferred to the fund’s account. At
the 2023 Christmas Party, “The Great
Gala", aincredible amount of €6,592
was collected in the raffle. In line
with the company’s commitment

to double this amount, the final
contribution to the Plamienok
Children's Hospice was €13,184.
Our employees also supported

the League Against Cancer on

the occasion of Daffodil Day

on 18 March 2024. Moreover,

our company ranked 37th out

of 1,299 participating companies
and institutions in the "Bike

to Work" campaign aiming

at environmental protection.

22 teams of 77 individuals took part
in the competition, completing 736
rides and savingup to 1,952.71 kg
of CO,. We would like to thank all
our colleagues from the bottom

of our hearts. We plan to continue
to develop and support our health,
environmental and community
support activities.

Ouremployees
also supported
the League
Against Cancer
on the occasion
of Daffodil Day on
18 March 2024,
Moreover, our
company ranked
37th out of 1,299
participating
companies and
institutions

in the "Bike to Work"
campaign aiming
at environmental
protection.

EMPLOYEES AND THE DEVELOPMENT OF CORPORATE CULTURE
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NATURAL GAS - COST-
-FFECTIVE LOW-EMISSION
HEAT PRODUCTION
SOLUTION

Up to 94% of households and companies

in Slovakia have access to natural gas.

The affordability, reliability of use, easy
operations and automated operations

of modern gas appliances and environmental
friendliness are the main prerequisites

for long-term use of natural gas in Slovakia.
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NATURAL GAS AND
THE ENVIRONMENT

Although natural gas is a fossil fuel,
it has extremely positive ecological
characteristics compared to other
fuels. The combustion of natural

gas produces significantly less
pollutants as compared with solid
fuels and only a negligible amount
of dust particles (PM10 and PM2.5),
which at higher concentrations
seriously pose a serious health risk.
Moreover, the combustion of natural
gas produces negligible amounts

of sulphur oxides, minimum amounts
of carbon monoxide and the level

of nitrogen oxides is low. When using
natural gas for heat production, up to
50% of CO, emissions can be saved
compared to coal. The European
Union has approved the inclusion

of gas and nuclearin the taxonomy
as transitional fuels, which means
that investments in the use of natural
gas and nuclear can be considered
sustainable if specific conditions

are met. The relevant delegated act
entered into force in January 2023.

More than 12% of the Slovak
population is exposed to increased
concentrations of PM2.5 particles

in the air, which is significantly
higher than the average in the OECD
countries. Slovakia has the 3rd worst
air quality in the whole EU in this
regard. The adverse indicator values
for PM2.5 particles are confirmed

by several sources - EEA, EPI,
Eurostat or OECD. In its latest report,
the European Environment Agency
states that Slovakia accounts for up
to 4,900 preventable deaths peryear
due to poor air quality caused by fine
PM2.5 particles. Evenin gas-using
regions where air temperatures are

o, U

low in winter, customers are inclined
to burn wood or waste for economic
reasons. Addressing the adverse
smog situation and reducing

the volume of dust particles in the air
is possible by responsibly selecting
heating sources and a rational
approach by the state to promote
low-emission heating systems. It

is also necessary to set up support
programmes tailored to households
suffering from energy poverty.
According to a study by the Slovak
Academy of Sciences published
inJuly 2023, the share of Slovak
households that can be classified as
energy pooris 10%.

Asignificant milestone was

the connection of the first
biomethane station to

the distribution network

in November 2021. Since then,

the station in JelSava has been
reliably supplying the distribution
network with advanced biomethane.
For the last 12 months to the end

of July 2024, this was a considerable
volume of 5.5 million cubic metres.
Biomethane production is becoming
a strategic activity within the energy
security of the European Union and
we therefore expect significant
public support foritand anincrease
in production in the coming period.
Thisis shown by the 10 projects

for the conversion of existing

biogas plants into biomethane
plants across Slovakia that have
succeeded in the Recovery Plan
calland have the possibility

of receiving investment support

of up to €1.5 million per project.
The production of biomethane from
biodegradable waste significantly
reduced methane emissions

in the waste sector, which represent

50 %

CO, emissions of solid fuels
such as coal or wood

the largest share in the composition
of methane emissions
on the territory of Slovakia.

RENEWABLE GAS
REGISTRY

The Renewable Gas Registry is

an electronic system tasked with
issuing, transferring and applying
guarantees of origin for renewable
gases, such as biomethane.
Guarantees of origin represent

one megawatt-hour of renewable
gas, predominantly injected into

the distribution network. Guarantees
of origin are established on the basis
of metering data at the entrance to
the distribution network. Biomethane
plant operators, renewable gas
producers, gas suppliers and
customers and other relevant
account holders have theiraccounts
in the registry.

In the first 12 months, the Slovak
Renewable Gas Registry issued
guarantees of origin for almost

50 GWh of biomethane. The registry
has 15 commercial accounts

since its launch. Guarantees

of origin for biomethane produced
in Slovakia are predominantly
purchased by consumersin Germany,
while guarantees are also imported
from the Netherlands.

The Renewable Gas Registry

also allows the cross-border

transfer of guarantees

of origin for biomethane, whether
forsale or purchase. The transfer
can be carried out manually after
recognition of the guarantee

of origin by the registry operator

or, since 2023, also automated with
the help of the ERGaR Hub (European

NATURAL GAS - COST-EFFECTIVE LOW-EMISSION HEAT PRODUCTION SOLUTION
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Renewable Gas Registry) clearing
centre. Currently, the registries

of Germany, Austria, the Netherlands,
Denmarkand UK are connected to
the centre.

The obligation to establish and
operate the register resulted

for SPP - distribucia from

the amendment to Act No. 309/2009
Coll. on the promotion of renewable
energy sources and high-efficiency
combined production and on

the amendment to certain acts, which
entered into effect on 1 December
2022.

ENERGY PERFORMANCE
OF BUILDINGS

Since 1 January 2021, itis
mandatory in the Slovak Republic
to construct new buildings

according to the "nearly zero
energy buildings” standard

(energy class A0). The standard
represents a significant change

in terms of design, construction
and operation of buildings. Itis not
only about minimising the energy
consumption of buildings, but also
about sustainability in architecture
and construction with the intention
of creating buildings that are
energy-efficient, environmentally
safe and economic in the future.
Natural gas appears to be a suitable
fuel for heating and hot water
production in A1 and AO energy class
buildings, especially in combination
with a solar system. Its advantages
include favourable price ratio

of a condensing boiler (including
installation), high efficiency, low
operating costs, simplicity and
comfort. Moreover, natural gas

Low-temperature floor heating - comparison

Fuel calorific value
Thermal equipment
Efficiency

Unit price 2024 (€)
Tariff

Heat in the fuel (kWh)
Amount of fuel

has beneficial impact on ecology

in replacing solid fuels, with a plan
for the gradual decarbonization using
biomethane and hydrogen. From
July 2024 SPP - distribucia, a.s. has
been offering the general public to
obtain one of three types of family
house projects for building permits

in A0 energy class using economically
advantageous natural gas heating
free of charge.

AQ FAMILY HOUSE
WITH NATURAL GAS
PROJECTS

From July 2024, SPP - distribucia,
a. s. has come up with an offer of AQ
energy class family house projects
forits household customers free

of charge. This practical initiative
of the distributoris intended for all
those who are planning to build

Gas boiler - old Gas boiler - new Heat pump
10,70 kWh/m? 10,70 kWh/m? 1
Atmospheric boiler Condensing boiler Heat pump - air/water
80% 98% 290%
€0.0571/kWh €0.0589 / kWh €0.1709 / kWh
D3 (SPP) D3 (SPP) DD5 (ZSE)
23,938 kWh 19,541 kWh 6,603 kWh
2,237 m3 1,826 m3 6,603 kWh

a house and opt for low-emission
and cost-effective natural gas
heating.

Customers who choose to connect
their properties to the gas
distribution network will receive

a free AO energy class house project.

Our aim is to make the process

of obtaining planning permission
for their new family home both
financially and time-efficient

for our customers. We believe that
the project provided in this way will
motivate many people to connect
their property to natural gas, thus
obtaining the cheapest low-emission
heating in terms of overall costs. At
the same time, we are also sending
a message to the professional
design community and construction

authorities that designing new
family houses using natural gas as
the main heating source is easily
possible even in AQ energy class.

Customers who are interested

in a free house project and have

a contract for connection to

the natural gas distribution network
can choose from up to three different
options on the company’s website
www.spp distribucia.sk. They can
choose from 115 m?2, 160 m?and 200
m? house projects. SPP distribucia
will provide the selected project to
the customer after filling in a short,
simple and free order form.

Gas condensing boiler is

the cheapest low-emission
heating solution, especially in case
of reconstruction of family houses

Radiator high-temperature heating - comparison

Fuel calorific value
Thermal equipment
Efficiency

Unit price 2024 (€)
Tariff

Heat in the fuel (kWh)
Amount of fuel

Gas boiler - old
10,70 kWh/m?
Atmospheric boiler

Gas boiler - new
10,70 kWh/m? 1
Condensing boiler Heat pump - air/water

Specific example:

Basic parameters of the compared

house:

* Size of the house: 228 m?

* Energy class: B (Decree No.
364/2012 Coll.)

e Total energy demand: < 110 (kWh/
(m?/year)

* Global primary energy indicator:
<216 kWh/(m?/year)

e Heat demand for heating (mean
value): 65 kWh/(m?/year)

* Heat demand for water heating
(mean value): 16.90 kWh/(m?/
year)

* Source output: 10 kW

e Total energy demand of the house:
19,150 kWh

Heat pump

80% 97% 260%
£0.0571 / kWh £0.0584 / kWh £0.1673 / kWh
D3 (SPP) D3 (SPP) DD5 (ZSE)
23,938 kWh 19,742 kWh 7,365 kWh
2,237 m? 1,845 m3 7,365 kWh

Annual fuel costs €1,367 / year €1,151 / year
Service + fuel transport €60/ year €80/ year
Total operating costs €1,427 | year €1,231 / year

€1,129 / year
€200/ year
€1,329 / year

Main heat source €1,970 €1,970 £€11,150
Installation + material €800 €800 €800
Commissioning €170 €170 €504
Chimney (if needed) €300 €300

Zelend doméacnostiam (Green households) -€3,800
subsidy

Sum including the subsidy for a heat source €3,240 €3,240 €8,654
Sum excluding the subsidy for a heat source €3,240 €3,240 €12,454
Total costs including the subsidy for a heat €24, 645 €21,705 €28,589

source (15 years)
Total costs excluding the subsidy for a heat
source (15 years)

€24,645 €21,705 €32,389

Annual fuel costs €1,367 / year €1,153 / year
Service + fuel transport €60/ year €80/ year
Total operating costs €1,427 | year €1,233 / year

€1,232 / year
€200/ year
€1,432 / year

Main heat source €1,970 £€1,970 €13,146
Installation + material €800 €800 €800
Commissioning €170 €170 €504
Chimney (if needed) €300 €300

Zelend domacnostiam (Green households) -€3,800
subsidy

Sum including the subsidy for a heat source €3,240 €3,240 €10,650
Sum excluding the subsidy for a heat source €3,240 €3,240 €14,450
Total costs including the subsidy for a heat €24, 645 €21,735 €32,130

source (15 years)
Total costs excluding the subsidy for a heat
source (15 years)

€24,645 €21,735 €35,930

The table shows that the gas
condensing boiler is the most
advantageous in terms of total
costs for the customer.

The investment costs for a heat
pump are significantly higher,
even after taking the subsidy into
account. However, the operating
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costs of a heat pump are not
sufficiently favourable to
compensate for the high initial
investment (€10,000 or more).

On the contrary, a condensing gas
boiler delivers natural gas savings
of around 17% compared to an older
gas boiler, leading to lower total

energy expenditures. Overall, a gas
condensing boiler is economically
advantageous for both heating
systems (floor and radiator), due

to the fact that the gas boiler has
approximately the same efficiency at
different output water temperatures.
In case of gas boilers, the type

of heating system does not matter,
unlike in case of a heat pump, which
appears to be more economically
viable for floor heating than for a
high temperature radiator system.

OPEX - operating costs (2024)
CAPEX - input/investment costs
(2024)

Two basic parameters enter

the economic evaluation of any

heating system: the investment
costs (CAPEX) and operating costs
over the lifetime of installation or
for the evaluation period (OPEX).

NATURAL GAS - COST-EFFECTIVE LOW-EMISSION HEAT PRODUCTION SOLUTION
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PRODUCTION OF
ELECTRICITY AND HEAT
INACOGENERATION
UNIT

Acogeneration unitis able to
produce heat, electricity or even
cooling in one installation, which
leads to significant savings,

up to 40%, of primary energy
compared to separate heat and
power generation. The direct
consequence of saving primary
fuelis the decrease in emissions
from burning. A cogeneration unit
is able to cover multiple energy
needs of the customer with one
device. Due to the availability

of cogeneration in many
performance classes, there are
wide possibilities for use in industry,
in the municipal sphere, in health or
social facilities. For those interested
in cogeneration, we offer free
analysis of the use of cogeneration

in the installation of a new heat
source or modernization of their
existing one. Cogeneration units can
seamlessly burn biomethane, which
can easily reduce CO, emissions.
Modern cogeneration units also
allow the combustion of a mixture
of natural gas and hydrogen up to
20% hydrogen by volume, thus also

contributing to decarbonising the air.

COMPRESSED NATURAL
GAS (CNG) AND ITS
APPLICATION IN
TRANSPORT

The operation of CNG vehicles
benefits usersin the form of lower
fuel costs and also a 50% lower
motor vehicle tax compared to
vehicles running on conventional
fuels. Moreover, the use of CNG
significantly reduces emissions

of harmful substances and reduces
noise, which ultimately benefits

MAP OF CNG STATIONS AS AT 31 JULY 2024
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society asawhole in the form of a
better environment.

The use of CNG produces almost no
particulates released into the air.
Therefore, no filters or additives
are needed. The use of CNG brings
economically advantageous,
environmentally friendly and safe
transport. CNG can be gradually
replaced by renewable biomethane
in the future.

SPP - distribucia is supporting

CNG with beneficial tariffs for CNG
filling stations and through spp-
distribucia.sk and oplyne.info where,
in addition to generalinformation on
the benefits of natural gas, we also
present CNG to the general public as
an environmentally friendly fuel with
the potential for greater application
in transport. We also provide free
business and technical advice to
those interested in building CNG
stations.
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MARKETING
COMMUNICATION

Most of marketing activities (about 70%) took place online through
social networks and platforms, Facebook, Instagram, YouTube and

the company's websites (www.oplyne.info and www.spp-distribucia.sk,
www.mojnovykotol.sk) and on partner websites in the form of articles
or podcasts. The key campaign was mojnovykotol.sk with a marketing
impactin the order of millions of impressions.
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GREEN FUTURE
NETWORK CAMPAIGN

Natural gas heating seems to be
the most effective and accessible
toolto solve the problem of our
polluted air. Our continuous media
campaign, entitled "Green Future
Network”, is aimed at explaining
the important role of biomethane
and hydrogen in decarbonising
the Slovak Republic. The Green
Future Network claim appearsin all
external, marketing and internal
communication activities.

GREEN FUTURE
NETWORK GRANT
PROGRAMME

The protection and preservation

of the environmentis one

of the priorities of SPP - distribucia,
a.s. Thatis whyinJuly 2024 we
launched the Green Future Network
grant programme, which supports
projects of towns, municipalities
and self-government units

aimed at protecting, revitalising
and increasing the functionality

of natural areas and greenery,
watercourses, creating ecological
corridors and other environmental
activities.

The main pillars of the programme
are ecology and modernisation.
We support the landscaping

and planting of green spaces,

the installation of recycling

bins, eco dog walks and bike
racks. The programme also
includes projects to restore

the functionality of public spaces,
such as the installation of modern
furnishings and energy efficient
lighting.

The Green Future Network is
aninternal subsidy scheme

)

for municipalities, towns and

local governments. A total

of €100,000 will be redistributed
under the project. One project can
receive a maximum of €10,000.

In total, we will support ten local
governments each year. The aimis
not only to restore these areas to
their original appearance, but also
to provide them with modern and
functional green spaces that will
serve the community and contribute
to a sustainable future. We also
support educational and awareness-
raising activities aimed at raising
awareness of environmental
problems and solutions, helping to
shape an environmentally conscious
society.

At SPP distribucia, we believe
thatinvesting in green projects is
key to the future of our towns and
municipalities. The Green Future
Network is part of our broader
ESG strategy, which focuses

on environmental, social and
governance, and contributes to
the long-term sustainability and
prosperity of our communities.

MY NEW BOILER
CAMPAIGN

Magjnovykotol.sk (My New Boiler)
initiative is a key part of our strategy
to promote energy efficiency and
sustainability. The project focuses
onreplacing old gas boilers with
new condensing ones and supports
households in switching to advanced
gas condensing boilers, which

bring significant cost-saving and
environmental benefits. Together
with partner boiler manufacturers,
we offer a discount of up to €600 on
the purchase of a new low-emission
gas condensing boiler. Interested
parties can choose from five
renowned manufacturers of heating

Condensing technology can
save the customer up to

23 %o

of gas costs

technology. After registering

and selecting the required boiler
parameters, the system will
generate a voucher for them,
which they can redeem in the sales
network of the respective
manufacturer.

"In the context of the current energy
crisis, we would like to help gas
consumers in replacing their old
boiler with an advanced condensing
boiler. By purchasing a discounted
boiler, the customer will save

twice - not only on the purchase
price, but also on heating and

hot water costs, as condensing
technology can save the customer
up to 23% of gas costs,” points

out Martin Holly, General Director
of SPP - distribucia.

Advanced gas condensing boilers
offer gas savings to households
ranging from 15% to 23% compared
to traditional atmospheric boilers.
Moreover, these boilers are
equipped with H2 Ready technology,
ensuring readiness for future
hydrogen use, an important step
towards a sustainable heating future
and decarbonisation. In addition,
advanced boilers allow for flexible
modulation of heat output, meaning
you can carry out home insulation
later without negatively impacting
boiler performance. Our company
strives not only to reduce costs

for our customers, but also to
reduce greenhouse gas emissions,
contributing to tackling climate
change.

You can find more information on My
New Boiler project at the website.
We are convinced that this initiative
will contribute to an effective
solution to the energy crisis and
support our common path towards

a sustainable future.

NATURAL GAS - COST-EFFECTIVE LOW-EMISSION HEAT PRODUCTION SOLUTION
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PREPARATION OF
HEAT INAHOUSE
WITH HYDROGEN OR
AMIXTURE OF GASES

GAS CONDENSING
BOILER

For a mixture of gases, such

as a mixture of natural gas and
biomethane, nothing changes. An
advanced gas condensing boiler
can burn this mixture without any

ANNUAL REPORT

restrictions. In the case of gas
mixtures with H, addition up to 10%,
heating and hot water production
in the gas condensing boiler

also appear to be unrestricted.
Advanced gcondensing boiler
manufacturers declare that new
boilers constructed after 2020 are

&Y

H2Ready up to 20% of hydrogen
contentand from 2024 onwards
boilers capable of burning pure
hydrogen are under preparation.
Advanced gas boilers will be able
to produce heat and hot water as
before.

10%

H, addition to heating and hot water
production also appear to be unrestricted

CONDENSING BOILERS
FORHOUSES

Thermal comfort, safety, user
convenience and efficient use

of energy contained in natural

gas - all thisis provided by

the progressive technology

of condensing boilers. Compared
to previous technologies, whether
conventional or low-temperature
boilers, the condensing boiler can
use a largeramount of the energy
contained in the gas, which leads
to a significant reduction in the cost
of energy consumption. Just by
replacing an old, non-condensing
gas boiler, itis possible to reduce
natural gas consumption by 15-23%.
The new gas condensing boilers
are now ready to burn a mixture

of natural gas and hydrogen, and,
in the future, also pure hydrogen.

Fuel
cell x

Heat
generation

FUEL CELL - "SEMI-
ISLAND" OPERATION

There are already fuel cells available
today that decompose natural gas
into H2 and CO, in a reformer. If

pure H2 or a mixture rich in pure

H2 is supplied to the fuel cell,

the efficiency of power generation
will be higher, at approximately 60%
and 30% of heat.

A'modern fuel cell system is capable
of routing energy as required

based on the control system, which
will route heat, hot water and
electricity to domestic appliances
asrequired. The heat produced

in the fuel cell will be used for hot
water preparation and heating. If
more heat output is needed, part

of the generated electricity will be
used to produce heat. The remaining
electrical energy will be stored

in the battery box and ready
forimmediate use. Control systems

Battery
box

of this kind "learn” (machine
learning) to predict the electricity
demand of individual appliances,
controlling preferably controllable
domestic electricity appliances (air
conditioning, heat recovery, water
heating (pulse width modulation
control), charging of electric cars
and e-bikes, etc.). In the event

of a power or energy shortage,

the system "buys” electricity from
the public grid.

The performance of the fuel

cells, the size of the battery box
and the heat storage (hot water
+heating) need to be balanced,
modelled and optimised. Summer
mode is limited by the production
of hot water and thus the amount
of electricity produced is also
determined. Winter mode,

as mentioned above, allows

the "overproduction” of electricity to
be used for heat preparation.

Public grid

. Control “.
'\ system

Heat recovery

Air conditioning

Refrigerator

Stove/oven

Washing machine

/dryer

TV / HiFi

Heat v
storage | .1

%

Lighting
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COOPERATION WITH
THE ASSOCIATION OF TOWNS
AND COMMUNITIES OF
SLOVAKIA (ZMQS)

In the past year, we have
significantly deepened our
cooperation with the Association
of Towns and Communities

of Slovakia (ZMQS), which has
resulted in several key activities.
The cooperation started in January
2023, when we created an online
questionnaire for municipalities

in cooperation with ZMOS, aimed
at conducting a feasibility study on
the economic viability of different
heat sources in municipal and
town buildings. In May 2023, we
participated in the ZMOS Congress,

where we presented the new oplyne.

info portal and the Renewable Gas
Register. In addition, we answered
mayors' questions and provided
them with individual consulting
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regarding the construction
of gas facilities and the building
reconstructions.

From February 2023 to June 2024,
we carried out several feasibility
studies for ZMOS, focusing on

the profitability of different

heat sources for municipal and

town buildings, as well as on
supporting the use of subsidies

from the Renewal Plan, Eurofunds
and the EnviroFund. An important
milestone was the involvement

of ZMQOS as a communication partner
in our My New Boiler project. As part
of this cooperation, we highlighted
the effectiveness of advanced gas
technologies in energy saving and
decarbonisation at the ZMOS press

i I ||-_'i|-|. “l_r

conference in March 2024. Our

joint action allows municipalities
toreceive a voucher fora new
condensing boiler of up to €600,
which contributes to double savings.

In May 2024, we participated

in the ZMOS Congress again, where
we received valuable feedback
from mayors from all over Slovakia.
Many of them had already had
personal experience with our My
New Boiler campaign and actively
promoted itin their municipalities.
The partnership with ZMQOS is key
forus and contributes to reducing
energy costs in houses and buildings
across Slovakia.

Distribucia
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REPORT ON
THE COMPANY'S
BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

ECONOMIC
AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

Development of the Business
Environment

The winter (2023/2024) ended up
being the 1st warmest and 93rd
coldest, in temperature terms,
since at least 1931. Statistically
significant (seasonal) variations
occurred over most of the territory
and so we characterize itas an
extremely above-normally warm.
The winter was extremely above-
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normally warm only in the High
Tatras and locally in the Low

Tatras. Deviations of seasonal
(winter) air temperatures from

the 1991-2020 long-term average
ranged from +1.9°C to +4.3°C.
Compared to to individual normals
(defined as the average value

of a meteorological element or
characteristic over a period of 30
years), the winter of 2023/2024 was
+3.6°C warmer than the 1991-2020
value, +4.2°C warmer than the 1981-
2010 value, and +4.7°C warmer
than the 1961-1990 value. (Source:
SHMU)

In 2024, SPP - distribdcia, a. s.
continued to streamline its internal
processes. Although the level

of operating costs is stable,

the company continues to analyse
and evaluate operating activities
inan effort to optimize them.

Between 1 August 2023 and 31 July
2024, the company had to pay close
attention and respond to regularly
changing regulatory legislation.

On 1January 2024, the Regulation
of the Government of the Slovak
Republic No. 472/2023 Coll.

came into force, laying down
crisis regulation for, among other
things, the tariff for access to
the gas distribution network,

the tariff for gas distribution

and the tariff for covering losses
in gas distribution. In the crisis
regulation, price decisions do not
apply; the prices are replaced

by those set by the Government
in the Regulation. The difference
between these prices is
compensated by the Ministry

of Economy.

Act No.251/2012 Coll. on energy
(hereinafter referred to as "ZoE")
as wellas Act No. 250/2012 Coll.
on regulation in network industries
(hereinafter referred to as "ZoR")
were amended with effect from

8 June 2024 by Act No. 128/2024
Coll., requiring the Company to
update the data in the business
permit more frequently and making
certain sanctions for breaches

of regulatory regulations more
restrictive. Later, these regulatory
regulations were amended by Act
No. 109/2024 Coll. with effect from
1 July 2024 which, among other
things, loosen the rules for carrying
out readings for household gas
customers. Act No. 143/2024 Coll.
was also published in the Collection
of Laws, amending the ZoE and
ZoR with effect from 1 August

2024. Thisamendment will bring
changes in technical matters
concerning price proposals as well
as the delivery of official documents
by the Regulatory Office of Network
Industries (hereinafter referred to as
"URS0").

Within the framework of sub-
legislative regulations,

the company's activities are directly
affected by the new Decree of URSO
No. 451/2022 Coll. establishing
price regulation of selected
regulated activities in the gas
industry and certain conditions
forthe performance of selected
regulated activities in the gas
industry. This regulation has been
replaced by the new Decree of URSO
No. 147/2024 Coll. establishing
price regulation of selected
regulated activities in the gas
industry and certain conditions
forthe performance of regulated
activities in the gas industry. This
decree was extensively commented
on by the company. With effect

from 1 July 2023, the new Decree

of URSO No. 208/2023 Coll. laying
down the rules for the functioning
of the internal gas market,

the content of the operating

rules of the network operator

and the storage facility operator,
and the scope of the business
terms and conditions that are part
of the operating rules of the network
operator (hereinafter referred to

as "Market Rules"), is also in force.
The Market Rules have been
amended by the Decree of URSO
No. 491/2023 Coll. with effect

from 30 December 2023 and by

the Decree of URSO No. 132/2024
Coll. The amendments to the Market
Rules entailed, among other things,
an obligation for the company to
submit new data on the consumption
of individual delivery points.

Atthe European level, the Gas
Package was adopted. This

consists, inter alia, of (i) Directive
of the European Parliament and

of the Council on common rules
forthe internal market in renewable
gases, natural gas and hydrogen,

to be transposed by 5 August 2026,
and (ii) Regulation of the European
Parliament and of the Council on
the internal market in renewable
gases, natural gas and hydrogen, to
apply from 5 February 2025. These
are intended to create the conditions
forthe decarbonization of the gas
industry, inter alia through greater
use of hydrogen in the gas industry.

Among non-legislative acts,
Regulatory Policy for the 6th
regulatory period came into force
on 1 January 2023, in the drafting
of which the company was actively
involved.

Last but not least, SPP - distribucia,
a.s.is closely monitoring

the presented intentions

of the government and actively
participates in various initiatives

of the Ministry of Economy

of the Slovak Republic or

the Regulatory Office for Network
Industries in order to defend

the important and strategic position
of natural gas in the energy mix

of the Slovak Republic.

Information relating to the EU
Taxonomy Regulation for all EP
Infrastructure Group companies

is disclosed in the Group's
Consolidated Annual Report
for2023in note 5and in the EPIF
Sustainability Report for 2023.

Both documents are available on
the website of EP Infrastructure, a.s.

REPORT ON THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
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ECONOMIC RESULTS
OF SPP - DISTRIBUCIA,
A.S.

SPP - distribucia a.s. achieved
revenues from natural gas
distributionin the financial year 2024
of €435.39 million.

The operating costsincurred by

the company to secure the revenues
from the sale of the services reached
the amount of €299.94 million.
Operating costs included mainly
depreciation and amortization,
natural gas storage costs and
personnel costs.

Comparison of profit-after-tax structure (in € mil.):

Distribution of natural gas
Otherrevenues

Operating costs

Operating profit

Profit/loss on financial activity
Profit before tax

Income tax

Profit after tax

ASSET AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

Assets

On the balance sheet date

of the financial statements,

the company's total assets were
€4,881.01 million, representing

a decrease of €16.71 million
compared to the previous year 2023.
Long-term assets with a value

of €4,049.51 million accounted

for 82.96% of the total assets.

The most significant long-term

assetitemis the gas pipelines,
which the company recognizes

at fairvalue as of 31 July 20243.

The last revaluation was carried out
asat 31 July 2023. The revaluation
of the company's assets was carried
out by an independent expert who
used the cost method.

In the financial year 2024, €47.79
million was spent on the acquisition
of long-term assets, which was
mainly directed towards the renewal
of the distribution network. In

the financial year 2024, the company

Comparison of the structure of assets (in € mil.):

Long-term assets
Current assets
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2024 2023

4,049.51 4,310.55
831.55 587.21

During the financial year 2024,

the company achieved a profit before
tax of €188.78 million and a profit
after tax of €146.73 million.

2024 2023

397.10
72.01
-296.98
172.13
1.83
173.96
-40.52
133.44

did notincurany research and
development expenses.

Current assets increased by
€2,445.33 million compared to 2023
and amounted to €831.55 million at
the balance sheet date. The growth
in the value of current assets was
driven by two effects: Anincrease
inreceivables and advances granted
due to growth in the cash pooling
receivable and growth in cash and
cash equivalents.

2024 2023

82.95% 88.01%
17.05% 11.99%

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

In the capital structure

of SPP - distribucia, a.s. there was
no significant change in the share
between own and outside sources
of financing. Own funds continued
to outweigh outside sources

of financing, representing 68.80%
of the total sources of asset
coverage.

Equity increased by €30.86 million
compared to the financial year 2023
and amounted to €3,358.94 million
at the balance sheet date. Equity
consisted primarily of fixed capital,
the legal reserve fund, the asset
revaluation fund, retained earnings

and profits from the current
accounting period. The registered
capital of the company was one
share with a nominal value of €1,200
million. As of the balance sheet
date, the legal reserve fund and
other funds consisting of capital
contributions and the asset
revaluation fund amounted to
€1,895.18 million.

The profit for 2023 was a profit

of €133.44 million, which was paid
to the company’s sole shareholder
in the form of dividends in the full
amount. The general meeting will
decide on the distribution of profit or
loss for the financial year 2024.

Comparison of the structure of liabilities (in € mil.)
2024

Equity 3,358.94
Accounts payable 1,522.12

2023 2024 2023

3,328.08 68.80% 67.95%
1,569.68 31.20% 32.05%

The shareholder structure as of 31 July 2024 was as follows:

SPP Infrastructure, a.s.

REPORT ON THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

The company's liabilities accounted
for 31.18% of the company's
assets and amounted to €1,522.12
million as of the balance sheet
datein the financial statements.
The bulk of the total liabilities
consisted of long-term liabilities
totalling €1,436.79 million which
decreased by €78.94 million year-
on-year. The most essential items
are a deferred tax liability and loans
and bonds. Short-term liabilities
increased by €31.37 million mainly
due to a decrease in short-term
contractual liabilities. At the balance
sheet date they amounted to €85.32
million.
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SUMMARY RESULTS

capital structure and profit/

Balance sheet (selected datain € thsd.)

ASSETS

LONG-TERM ASSETS

Buildings, structures, machinery and equipment
Rights of use

Investments in subsidiaries

Intangible long-term assets and other assets
Loans granted

Total long-term assets

CURRENT ASSETS

Stock

Receivables and advances granted
Contractual assets

Tax receivables and income taxes

Cash and cash equivalents

Loans granted

Other current assets

Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

CAPITALAND RESERVES

Share capital

Legalreserve fund and other funds
Retained earnings

Profit or loss for the current period

Total equity

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES

Total liabilities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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loss for SPP - distribdcia, a.s.,
forthe years ending 31 July 2024 and
Development of the state of assets, 31 July 2023 according to individual
financial statements prepared

Year ended
31 July 2024

4,012,017
25,832
1,000

10,589
73

4,049,511

194,928
166,635
30,490
0
439,420
72

0
831,545

4,881,056

1,200,000
1,895,182
117,032
146,727

3,358,941

1,436,794

85,321

1,522,115

4,881,056

in accordance with international
financial reporting standards as
approved by the EU.

Year ended
31 July 2023

4,143,881
27,847
1,000
10,387
127,437

4,310,552

205,631
11,191
32,920

490
336,912
70

0
587,214

4,897,766

1,200,000
1,945,752
48,894
133,438

3,328,084

1,515,732
53,950
1,569,682

4,897,766

Profit and loss account (selected data in € thsd.)

Distribution of natural gas
Otherrevenues

Operating costs

Operating profit

Financial revenues
Financing costs
PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Income tax

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD

Cash flow statement (selected datain € thsd.)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows from operating activities

Interest paid

Interest received

Income tax paid

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES
NET INCREASE IN CASH

CASH POSITION AT THE BEGINNING OF THE PERIOD

CASH POSITION AT THE END OF THE PERIOD

EVENTS OF PARTICULAR IMPORTANCE WHICH OCCURRED AFTER THE END OF

Year ended
31 July 2024

435,387
41,553
-299,938
177,002

21,883
-10,105
188,780

-42,053

146,727

Year ended
31 July 2024

360,619
-8,816
16,092

-68,619

299,276

-31,408

-165,360
102,508
336,912

439,420

Year ended
31 July 2023

397,097
72,008

-296,977
172,128

10,146
-8,312
173,962

-40,524

133,438

Year ended
31 July 2023

197,737
-6,774
3,472
-74,935
119,500

-25,436
-4,876
89,188

247,724

336,912

THEACCOUNTING YEAR FORWHICH THE ANNUAL REPORT IS DRAWN UP

After 31 July 2024, there were no significant events requiring alterations to or disclosures in the annual report.

REPORT ON THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
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STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE
WITH THE CODE OF
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
IN SLOVAKIA

In administration and management,
SPP - distribucia, a.s. complies with
the Code of Corporate Governance
in Slovakia issued by the Central
European Corporate Governance
Association. The Code is publicly
available at the Association's
website www.cecga.org. Our

GENERALMEETING

The General Meeting is the supreme
body of the company through

which the shareholders participate
in the management of the company.
Each shareholder has rights through
which they exert theirinfluence

in the company:
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aim is the implementation of and
compliance with the various
principles of the Code,
demonstration of the process

of theirimplementation, while
issuing a statement on corporate
governance. In the financial
year 2024, the company applied

a. Therightto participate
in the management
of the company, to a share
in the profitand liquidation
balance of the company
in case of its winding up with
liquidation. The shareholder
exercises the right to
participate in the management

the Code of Corporate Governance
without deviations. Pursuant to
Article 20 (6) of Act No. 431/2002
Coll. on accounting as amended,
the company presents the following
Statement:

of the company by voting at
General Meeting; the shareholder
must respect the organizational
measures valid for the course

of the General Meeting.

At the General Meeting

the shareholder has the right to
request information, explanations

relating to matters of the company

orissues concerning

the controlled persons, to
submit proposals to the agenda
of the General Meeting and to be
elected to bodies of the company.

b. Ashareholderis entitled to a share
in the profit of the company
(a dividend) that the General
Meeting has designated
for distribution. Ashareholder is
not obliged to return a dividend
received in good faith to
the company.

c. Tothe extent permitted by
applicable legislation (including
Energy Act No. 251/2012
Coll.), ashareholderis
entitled to inspect the minutes
of meetings of the Supervisory
Board, while being obliged
to maintain confidentiality
of the information thus obtained;

d. Theright to vote at General
Meeting - the shareholder's
number of votes is determined
by the ratio of the nominal value
of their shares to the share capital;

e. Any transfer of shares shall
be subject to the approval
of the General Meeting.

The General Meeting may
refuse a transfer of shares if it
isin conflict with the company’s
Articles of Association or

the shareholders agreement.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is a statutory
body of the company acting on
behalf of the company. The Board
of Directors makes decisions on all
matters related to the company.
The Board of Directors has five
members. Members of the Board
of Directors are appointed and
dismissed by the General Meeting
for the period of four years. When
electing or dismissing a member
of the Board of Directors,

The General Meeting performs

the following functions:

a. Election and dismissal
of members of the Supervisory
Board;

b. Election and dismissal
of members of the Board
of Directors;

c. Changesinthe Articles
of Association, the statute
of the Supervisory Board
or the statute of the Board
of Directors;

d. Changeinthe share capital;

e. Merger, fusion, split-up, change
of legal form, winding up with
liquidation or other significant
changesinthe corporate structure
of the company;

f. Decision on the appointment
of a liquidator of the company and
determination of remuneration
of the liquidator;

g. Decision on the distribution of any
dividends by the company or
distribution of other payments
arising from shares;

h. Decisions on theincrease or
decrease in the share capital
of the company;

i. Approval of ordinary individual,
extraordinary individual, ordinary
consolidated or extraordinary
consolidated financial statements
of the company;

j. Decisions on the allocation

of profit of the company, including

the General Meeting may determine
that their election to or dismissal
from the office is effective at
a later date than on the date when
the decision of the General Meeting
was taken.
The Board of Directors:
a. Manages the business
of the company and ensures
all of its operational and
organizational matters;
b. Convenesthe General Meeting;
c. Exercises employerrights;
d. Implements resolutions

the determination of the amount
of dividends and any royalties,
and on the method of settlement
of any company's losses;

. Decisions on changes

in the rights linked to any type
of the company’s shares;

. Decisions on the conversion

of registered shares to bearer
shares and vice versa;

.Decisions on the limitation or

exclusion of the preferential

right of a shareholder to
subscribe newly issued shares

of the company in accordance
with and subject to conditions laid
down by law;

. Approval of a contract on

the transfer of the company's
business and contract

on the transfer of a part

of the company's business;

. Any substantial change

in the nature of the core business
of the company orin the manner
in which the company conducts its
core business;

. Approval of the commencement

of any legal or arbitration
proceedings against persons
who were direct or indirect
shareholders of SPP before 23
January 2013 and ceased to be
shareholders of SPP no later than
on 23 January 2013;

. Appointment of an auditor.

of the General Meeting, or written
decisions of the sole partner;

. Ensures prescribed book-keeping

and keeping of otherrecords,
books and other documents
of the company;

. Submits reports to the General

Meeting;

. Submits materials to

the Supervisory Board
for consideration;

. Prepares an annual budget and

business plan of the company.

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN SLOVAKIA
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SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board is

the supreme control body

of the company. It supervises

the activities of the Board

of Directors and the performance
of business activities of the company.
The Supervisory Board

of the company has six members.
Two-thirds (2/3) of the members
of the Supervisory Board are elected
and dismissed by the General
Meeting. One-third (1/3)

of the members of the Supervisory
Board are elected by employees

of the company for a period of five
years, if so required within that
scope by the mandatory provisions
of Slovak law at the time of election
of the members of the Supervisory
Board. Meetings of the Supervisory
Board are convened by its chairman
at least every three months.

COMMITTEES

SPP - distribucia, a. s. has

used a legal exemption from

the obligation to establish an audit
committee directly at the level

of SPP - distribucia, a. s., and
ensured that activities of the audit
committee would be performed
by a committee established at

the level of the parent company
SPP Infrastructure, a. s., because
the parent company SPP
Infrastructure, a. s. also fulfils
conditions of the Act on Statutory
Audit for establishment of an audit
committee and therefore they have
established such a committee.

MANAGEMENT
METHODS

Forits management, the company
mainly uses methods of direct
management, methods combining
direct and professional (indirect)
management, and project
management methods.

Direct management is generally
based on setting goals,
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The Supervisory Board reviews

procedures in the matters

of the company and is entitled at

any time to inspect accounting

documents, files, and records
related to the activities

of the company and to establish

the standing of the company.

The Supervisory Board also checks

and - to the extent permitted by

law (in particular by the Energy

Act) - submits to the General

Meeting the conclusions and

recommendations resulting from its

monitoring activities related to:

a. Fulfilment of tasks assigned by
the General Meeting to the Board
of Directors;

b. Compliance with the Articles
of Association of the company and
relevant legislation with regard to
the company's activities;

c. Economicand financial activities
of the company, accounting,

The Audit Committee established

at the level of the parent company
SPP Infrastructure, a. s. performs its
activities for SPP - distribucia, a. s.
on the basis of a business and legal
contract on the provision of services.

The Audit Committee must have at
least 3 members. The committee
members are appointed by

the General Meeting. At least one
Committee member must have
professional experience in the area
of accounting or statutory audit and
allmembers as a whole must have
qualifications suitable for the sector
in which the accounting entity
operates. An absolute majority

tasks and directions, and on

the operational guidance of activities
of the managed organizational unit
or employee.

Professional (indirect) management
is based on the use of internal
control mechanisms, determination
of the scope for self-management
and organization of own work

of the managed organizational
unit oremployee, as well as

records, accounts, the state
of the company's assets, its
liabilities and receivables.

The Supervisory Board reviews
and - to the extent permitted by law
(in particular by the Energy Act) -
may submit to the General Meeting
reports related to:
a. Proposals by the Board
of Directors for the dissolution
of the company;
b. Proposals by the Board
of Directors for the appointment
of a liquidator of the company;
c. Proposals by the Board
of Directors regarding an
individualannual budget and
business plan of the company;
d. Reports of the Board of Directors.

of members as well as the chairman
of the Committee (elected by
members of the Committee or

by the Supervisory Board) must

be independent. Anindependent
memberis an individual who is not
connected by property or personally
with the accounting entity orits
subsidiary, its partners, members

of statutory bodies and statutory
auditor of the accounting entity, and
who is not their close person and
does not receive from the accounting
entity orits subsidiary any other
income than the remuneration

for the work in the Supervisory
Board or Audit Committee.

on the application of advanced
economic incentives that are
consistent with effective risk
management.

Project management assumes
temporary allocation of specific
organizational units or

employees and their temporary
subordination to the project leader
within the specified scope in order to
achieve objectives of the project.

INTERNAL CONTROL
SYSTEM AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Internal control at all levels

of the organizational structure
serves toreveal preventively

any potentialrisk occurrence

in the company. The internal control
systemincludes all the forms

of continuous control measures,
procedures and mechanisms
inindividual departments.

The internal control system
of SPP - distribucia, a.s. was

SHARE CAPITAL OF
THE COMPANY

The share capital of the company
amounts to€1,200,000,000 and is
structured as follows:

Issue No. (CEM): LP0001508566
Nominal value: €1,200,000,000
Type: ordinary share

Form: certificated

Class: registered share
Percentage share in share capital:
100%

Admitted to trading: 0 pc

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE IN SLOVAKIA

implemented through the adoption
of internal management acts which
regulate the performance of internal
controls and internal audits by
internal employees. The controls are
performed by employees directly
participating in individual processes,
managers of individual units or
employees authorised by them,

who are responsible for controlled
processes and control results, or by
internal auditors.

Controlresults are submitted to
relevant bodies of the company on
aregular basis. Timely adoption

The share capital structure

does not include shares whose
owners would have special rights

of inspection. The company has

no knowledge of any agreements
between holders of securities which
may resultin restrictions as to

the transferability of securities and
the limitation of voting rights.

The company has not entered into
any agreements which take effect,
alter, or terminate as a consequence
of a change in the control conditions
related to the takeover bid.

of preventive measures ensures
the effective adjustment of key
processes.

Within risk management,

SPP - distribucia, a.s. monitors,
evaluates and manages in particular
the regulatory, market, financial,
operating, environmental,
personnel, media risks, as well
as theirinfluence on the financial
statements. Thanks to the action
plans adopted by the company
management, the influence

of risks on company operation is
continuously decreased.

The company has not entered into
any agreements with the members
of its bodies or employees on

the basis of which they shall

be granted compensation, if

their position or employment is
terminated by resignation, notice
by the employee, their dismissal,
notice of dismissal by the employer
without indication of the cause, orif
employment is terminated as a result
of the takeover bid.
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REPORT ON THE IMPLEMENTATION
OF THE MEASURES TAKEN

IN THE DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM
OPERATOR'S COMPLIANCE
PROGRAMME FOR THE PERIOD
FROM 1 AUGUST 2023

TO 3T JULY 2024

1. The compliance programme

isaninternal regulation

of SPP - distribucia, a.s., which
lays down measures to ensure
non-discriminatory behaviour

on the part of the distribution
system operator. Under Act No.
251/2012 Coll. on energy and on
the amendment of certain laws,

a compliance programme must
be adopted by those network
operators that are part ofa
vertically integrated undertaking.
The last update of the compliance
programme entered into force

on 1 December 2015 and has

the regulatory designation:
D.RM.04.07.06.
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2. SPP - distribucia, a.s. employees

under the compliance programme
have:

(a) obligations ensuring
the independence
of the distribution system
operator from other activities
not related to gas distribution,

(b) obligations ensuring non-
discriminatory behaviour on
the part of the distribution
system operator
in the provision of information,

(c) obligations ensuring non-
discriminatory conditions
for the provision of distribution

system operator services to
gas market participants,

(d) conditions applicable to
the compliance programme
manager, including his/her
appointment and dismissal,

(e) requirements
for the operation
of the compliance
programme manager and
for checking compliance
with the compliance
programme, including
training of the employees
of the distribution system
operator on the compliance
programme,

3.

(f) obligations ensuring
the publication
of the compliance
programme, checking and
drawing up an annual report
on the implementation

of the compliance programme.

The fulfilment of the measures
listed in the compliance
programme between 1 August
2023 and 31 July 2024 was
ensured mainly as follows:

(a) SPP - distribucia, a.s. as
the distribution system
operator is established as
a separate company and
its organizational structure
isarranged in such a way
that the independence of all
activities of the distribution
system operator related to
gas distribution from other
activities of the vertically
integrated enterprise
unrelated to gas distribution is
ensured,

(b) compliance with a non-
discriminatory approach to
the provision of information
intended for gas market
participants and
in the provision of services
of the distribution system
operator,

(c) measures to ensure
non-discriminatory
behaviourinaccordance
with the compliance
programme are implemented
inthe internal procedures
of the distribution system
operator,

(d) publication of the compliance
programme to the employees
of the distribution system
operatorin the electronic
database of regulations and
to the public on the website
of the distribution system
operator,

(e) compliance with
the compliance programme.
For example, between 1
August 2023 and 31 July 2024,
the compliance programme
manager verified compliance
with the non-discriminatory
approach of the distribution
system operator
in performing services
for users of the distribution
network, in providing
information, in handling
requests, complaints and
customer complaints.
Furthermore, compliance with
the prohibition on the misuse
of confidentialinformation on
their own behalf was checked

for those employees who had
access to such confidential
information.

4. On 14 May 2014 SPP

Infrastructure, a.s. became
the sole shareholder

of SPP - distribdcia, a.s. and
the gas supplier, Slovensky
plynarensky priemysel, a.s. is
no longer part of this vertically
integrated company. This has
ensured the fullindependence
of the distribution system
operator from gas supply
activities. In the period from 1
August 2023 to 31 July 2024,
on the basis of contracts

SPP - distribucia, a.s. received
from Slovensky plynarensky
priemysel, a.s. services only

in the form of rental of real estate.

. Between 1 August 2023 and

31 July 2024, the compliance
programme manager

of the distribution system
operator found no breach

of the obligations set out

in the compliance programme.

In Bratislava on 14 August 2024,

/éwx/ung’{’

Ing. Milan Kachut

Compliance Programme Manager
of the distribution network operator SPP - distribucia, a. s.
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SFP - ditribdca, s .
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT VAT I0: SK2020325516

To the Shareholder, Supervisory Board and Board of Directors SPP — distriblicia, a.5. and the Audit Committes:
REPORT OM THE AUDNT OF THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS

Opinion

We have audited the financial staternents of SPP = distriblcia, a.s. (the "Company™), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 July 2024, the income statement and the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity and the statement of cash fows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including
raterial accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
31 duly 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS] as adopted in the European Union (EU).

Basis for Opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stotements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Act No. 423/2015 Coll, on Statutory Audit and on
Amendment to and Supplementation of Act No. 43172002 Coll. on Accounting, as amended (hereinafter the “Act on
Statutory Audit”) related to ethical requirements, including the Code of Ethics for Auditors that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirermnents, We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained Is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion,

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most sigraficance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a
whode, and in forming our opinson thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Description of the most significant assessed risks of Summary of the auditor's response to the risks
material misstatement, including assessed risks of maternial
misstaternent due to fraud

| Estimated Revenues from Gas Distribution
The Company recognises revenues from natural gas Our audit procedures included, inter alia:
distribution based on regulated prices and the quantity of | «  An assessment of the appropriateness and rebability of
distributed gas to end customers. A portion of revenues the procedure and method used by management to
from natural gas distribution o retail customers and determing the estimates;
househalds is recognised based on éstimates, as the *  Anassessment of the effectiveness of the design and
valume of natural gas distributed to such customers is operation of the controls over the estimate
determined by a meter reading of the consumed gas after determination by management and controls over
the end of the reporting period, Iimplementation of changes to the relevant

information system;

Rewenue estimates are software-based using input data

from management and an external data provider. Revenue | * Testing the accuracy of a sample of data based on

estimate calculations require Compary management to which the estimate is made, including the

apply a significant degree of judgment, especially as reconciliation of input parameters to internal and

regards the following assumptions: external undertying documentation;

a}  Estimated quantity of distributed natural gas *  Anassessment of IFRS requirements to recognise the
depending on measured temperatures in individual accounting estimate in the financial statements
off-take categories;

b}  Own consumption estimate;
¢} Changes in natural gas accumulation in the
distribution network.
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Assessment of Impairment

See Notes 3d, 4 and 7 to the financial statements

The cmm property, p|m and equipment, Owr audit prﬂcedures umﬂd. inter alia:

which comprises the natural gas distribution network in e A discussion with senior management of the

Slewvakia in the amount of EUR 4.0 billion [after the fair assessment of the existence of impairment indicators
value remeasurement of gas pipelines). As at each o significant changes in fair value, management
reporting date, the Company makes an sssessment a5 to conclusion that there were no such indicators or inputs
whether the distribution network is impaired, or whether as at 31 July 2024;

there was a significant change in its fair value, by *  Testing of the design and implementation of the
cabculating the present value of future cash flows arising internal control system over the discounted cash flow
from the Company’s operations and by estimating the model;

effect of key fair value indicators. An impairment test or *  Anassessment of the assumptions and methods used
an analysis of key indicators require an estimate of the by the Company when calculating the distribution
following key inputs for the calculation: network's value, mainly those relating to the discount

rate and future revenue development forecast;

*  Future fees the Com is entitled to ch far it
pany ArgETOrils |y Anexamination of the models mathematical basis;

distribution services under the price regulation

regime: *  Aretrospective review of the assumptions used in the
e The patential impact of the military conflict in model in the previous year;

Ukraine and changes, if any, to potential demand for | * An assessment a5 to whether available infarmation

gasin the energy mix of the Slovak Republic; regarding the outlook of the regulation regime to be

*  Natural gas volumes that will be distributed in the ::'cl'i:: in the future is adequately reflected in the
fustuare:
1 i b ®  An assessment of the adequacy and appropriateness of
* ch. a::'mt rate spacific to the aesets cwned by the disclosures in the Company's financial statements of
. A iahe;! capital and operating & tures assumgtions used as a basis for the cakculation of the
' present value of future cash flows arising frem the
The above assumptions require management to make Company's operations.

highly-subjective judgments regarding long-term periods.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management of the Company is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with IFRS as adopted in the EU, and for such internal control as management of the Company determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to frawd
O efror.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters refated to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting, wnless
management either intends to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owr objectives are to obtain reasonable assuwrance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to istue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International
Standards on Auditing will always detect a material masstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the econamic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auwditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit, We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
prowide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstaternent resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal control rebevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropeiate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

#*  (onclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the golng concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability 1o continue as a poing concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in cur auditor’s report Lo the related disclosures in the financial staterments or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our epinion. Our condusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report, However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to oease 10 continue as a
Roing concern,

*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the undertying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during owr audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical reguirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
1o bear on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguands applied.

Fram the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current pericd and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in cur auditor's report unbess law or regulation prechudes public discloswre about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumnstances, we determine that 3 matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outwelgh the public interest benefits of such communication.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Repart on Informatian Disciosed in the Annual Repart

The statutory body Is responsible for information disclosed In the annual report prepared under the requirements of the Act
on Accounting No. 431/2002 Call, a5 amended [the “Act on Accounting™). Our opinion on the financial statements stated
above does not apply 1o other infarmation in the annual report,

In connection with the audit of financial statements, our responsibility is to gain an understanding of the infarmation
disclosed in the annual report and consider whether such information is materially incansistent with the financial staterments
ar our knowledge obtained in the audit of the financial statements, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated,

We assessed whether the Company’s annual report inchudes information whose disclosure is required by the Act on
Accounting.

Based on procedures performed during the audit of the financial statements, in our opinion:

- Information disclosed in the annual report prepared for the year ended 31 July 2024 is consistent with the financial
staternents for the relevant year; and

- The annual report incledes information pursuant to the Act on Accounting.

Furthermore, based on our understanding of the Company and its position, obtained in the audit of the financial statements,
we are required to disclose whether material misstatements were identified in the annual report, which we received prior to
the date of issuance of this auditor's report. There are no findings that should be reported in this regard.

Other reporting obligations as required by Regulation (EL) No. 537/2014 of the Euvropean Porllament and af the Council of
16 April 2014 on specific requirements regarding stotutory audit of public interest entities

Appointment of the Auditor

Wie were appointed as the statutory auditor by the Company's General Meeting on 19 Decernber 2023, The length of ouwr
total uninterrupted engagement including previous renewals of the engagement [extensicns of the period for which we were
appointed] and our reappointments as the statutory auditors (s 15 years.

Consistency with the Additional Report to the Audit Committes

Our audit opinion expressed herein Is consistent with the additional report prepared for the Company's Audit Cormmities,
which we issued on 4 Seprember 2024,

Thiks . DB O T S ghnsl Buae s Fepeet a1 Lise Sk Linyguinge 10 L narrang b o P Enghah anguige

HNon-Audit Services

We did not provide the Company with any prohibited non-audit services referred o in Article 5 (1) of Regulation [EU) No
537/2014 of the European Parliament and of the Council of 16 April 2014 on specific requirements regarding the statutory
audit of public-interest entities and remaned independent of the Company when conducting the audit.

Other than statutory audit services and senvices disclosed in the annual report or financial statements, we provided no other
services to the Company and its controlled undertakings.

Bratislava, 10 September 2024

On behall of
Deboitte Audit 5.r.0.
Licence SKAL Ma. 014
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COMPANY
PROSPECT

Slovakia has the second densest

gas pipeline network in Europe.

Our distribution network of over
33,000 kilometres provides almost

a quarter of Slovakia's energy needs,
which entails a huge commitment to
the entire Slovak society.

We are already one of the strong
operators of the distribution
network, as we operate a network
of high pressure pipelines, a national
dispatching centre, in addition to
local networks, and we also have

a significant position in ensuring
the standard of security of natural
gas supply. We actively seek

new developmentimpulses and
continuously improve our customer
service. In addition to improving our
performance, we also place great
emphasis on our environmental
credentials. We are aware

of the urgency of tackling climate
change, therefore we are also
proactive in offering our solutions
using advanced gas condensing

ANNUAL REPORT

equipment and renewable gases.
We are convinced that today, but
especially in the future, the gas
industry will play an important role
in the decarbonisation process.

Natural gas, as the most affordable
low-emission heat source,
continues to maintain a decisive
share of individual household
heating in family houses, at more
than 60%. According to estimates
of manufacturers and suppliers
of heating equipment, more than
31 thousand low-emission gas
condensing boilers were sold

in Slovakia last year, which proves
that there is still a high demand
for gas heating from the owners
of existing houses. Natural gas
maintains a high share and
popularity among the population
due to its balanced mix of cost-
effectiveness, comfort and
low-emission profile, which has
a positive impact on improving
air quality. In the longer term,

the Slovak gas infrastructure

is relatively easy to adapt to
transport renewable gases such as
biomethane and hydrogen.

In practice, the energy efficiency
policy for buildings forces owners
of new AQ category houses to
install equipment that has monthly
costs comparable to gas heating,
but the purchase price of which is
several times higher than the price
of an advanced gas condensing
boiler. Meanwhile, greenhouse
gas emissions from individual
house heating are negligible after
the transition to AQ energy class,
even if the use of state-of-the-art
gas equipment in the form of low-
emission condensing boilers
continues. Moreover, these are
ready to burn renewable gases

in the future. Advanced condensing
boilers canimmediately save up to
23% of natural gas consumption
when replacing an older
atmospheric gas boiler.

CONTACTS

SPP - distribucia, a. s.
Platennicka 2

821 09 Bratislava
Slovak Republic
www.spp-distribucia.sk

Emergency line - gas:
Tel.: 0850111 727 (charged at
the price of local call)

Contract relations between

SPP - distribucia, a. s. and gas
suppliers:

Tel.: +421 22040 2011 sekretariat
sekcie distribu¢nych sluzieb

E-mail: distribucia@spp-distribucia.sk

Customer line for connection to
the distribution network:

Tel.: 0850269 269 (charged at
the price of local call)

Customer lineisin operation on
working days from 7:00 a.m. to 8:00
p.m.

E-mail: pripajanie@distribuciaplynu.sk
On-line forms:

www.spp-distribucia.sk/sk_online-
aplikacie

Microsite on natural gas:
www.oplyne.info

Facebook:
www.facebook.com/SPPdistribucia

Complaints regarding services
of SPP - distribucia, a. s.:
E-mail: reklamacie@spp-distribucia.sk

Public relations:

Mgr. Milan Vanga, manazér externej
komunikacie

Tel.: +421 220402020

GSM: +421 903 510 505

E-mail: milan.vanga@spp-distribucia.sk

We therefore intend to continue our
My New Boiler project in the coming
period by offering a discount on

the purchase of a condensing
boilerin the form of a voucher,
which we have secured for our
customers from the suppliers

of these modern gas technologies.
We will also make the process

of obtaining planning permission
for their new family house both
financially and temporarily easier
for our customers. SPP - distribucia
currently offers sample house
projects and a manual for designers
and builders on how to easily build
a family house in A0 energy class
using a modern gas condensing
boiler as the main heat source. We
believe that the project provided

in this way will motivate many
people to connect their property

to natural gas, thus obtaining

the cheapest low-emission

heating in terms of overall costs. At
the same time, we are also sending
a message to the professional
design community and construction
authorities that designing new
family houses using natural gas as
the main heating source is easily
possible even in AQ energy class.

The new EU directive on the energy
performance of buildings allows
the use of gas condensing boilers
for heating in existing buildings.

Under the directive, Member
States have to prepare plans to
decarbonise heating in buildings
by 2040 and to make efforts to
eliminate fossil fuels. The choice
of specificinstruments is entirely
up to the decision and the individual
possibilities and conditions of each
country, including Slovakia. In

our conditions, the instruments
chosen will depend on the financial
possibilities of the state and its
population. We see the most
effective solution to decarbonisation
in the use of advanced gas
technologies in the medium term,
and in the integration of renewable
gases into our gas systemin the long
term. We have been working
intensively on the development

of the renewable gas segment

for several years. Advanced gas
condensing boilers are already
capable of burning biomethane
and are also H2Ready - ready to
co-burn a mixture of natural gas
and hydrogen. We are therefore
convinced that gas infrastructure
will continue to be an essential
part of the Slovak energy
sectorand a low-cost solution

for decarbonising our country
inthe decades to come.

In the environmental area, we plan
further activities aimed at reducing
emissions from our operations.

We will continuously reduce
methane emissions by consistently
implementing our maintenance plan,
locating leaks in a timely manner
and reducing their duration. Our goal
is to reduce them by 30% by 2030.

In the coming days, we will also
introduce and offer our customers
a mobile app that will allow them to
easily monitor their own natural gas
consumption at the delivery point
and thus have better control over
their energy bills.

Aculture of continuous improvement
is afundamental characteristic and
attribute of our company. The past
financial year has confirmed our
indispensable position in the Slovak
energy industry, which we will
continue to strengthen in the future.
Our efforts are directed towards
continuing to be a reliable energy
distributor, a stable investor, an
attractive employer and thus
creating value for our customers,
employees and shareholders.

We are improving in all areas to
provide safe, reliable and cost-
effective natural gas distribution,
while contributing increasingly

to cost-effective decarbonization
and cleaner air both now and

in the future.
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